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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of EGL Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), | am pleased to present to
all shareholders the first annual report since the Company’s
successful listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 28 November
2014. The past year was of great significance for the Group as
the successful listing not only marked an important milestone in its
development history, but also evidencing the investors’ recognition
of its track record and their confidence in our prospects, and
solidifying the leading position of the Group in tourism industry
attributable to its consistently stringent and sincere manner on
services which were widely praised by our customers for years.
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Looking back on the past year, the tourism industry was adversely
affected by the mixed performance of global economy, coupled
with the raise of consumption tax in Japan, geopolitical tensions
in Ukraine, EU and US sanctions against Russia, political instability
in Thailand and the missing or accidents of Malaysian aircrafts.
Embracing the opportunities brought along with challenges, the
Group continued to launch new and diversified products and
services for its customers, thus maintaining a steady business
growth of the Group.

Standing by its motto of “Strive for consistent improvement of
high-quality service, with customer in our heart and sincerity
in our practice”, the Group endeavours to deliver high-quality
travel products and services. Following the celebration of
its 28th anniversary, as a 100% genuine Hong Kong brand,
except improving its service quality and promoting its brand,
promoting the development of creative culture of Hong Kong by
cooperating with local designer brand Chocolate Rain to create
a series of travel-themed illustrations featuring the world tour of
the girl designed by Chocolate Rain along with the trademark
of the Group “CoolBoy” to demonstrate the cultural features
of different countries in a colorful and lively style. Ten friends
from different sectors of society including designers and DJs,
etc. were invited to create new styles for CoolBoy, and held the
“CoolBoy Creative Style Design Contest” to engage locals to
share the joy. Meanwhile, the Group set up themed branches to
promote different travel destinations such as sakura theme for
Korea, vitality theme for Australia and Harry Potter theme for the
Universal Studios Japan, bringing novel and unique enroliment
experience for customers to enjoy the fun of different travel
cultures.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded satisfying results for the year ended 31
December 2014 with a total income approximately amounting to
HK$1,685 million (2013: HK$1,647 million), representing a year-
on-year increase of 2.3%. Profit attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$74.5 million during the year,
resulting from the listing expenses of approximately HK$18.6
million (2013: Nil) charged against the profit of approximately
HK$93.1 million. Please refer to the section “Management
Discussion and Analysis” for detalils.

20145 F 3K Annual Report 2014
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BUSINESS PROSPECT FOR 2015

Seizing the opportunities arising from the increased national
income of the PRC that leads to growing purchasing power
and stronger desire for quality lifestyle, the Group will cooperate
with qualified travel agencies in the PRC to strengthen its
marketing activities and expand its business scope in this great
potential markets by leveraging on its solid brand, thus extending
distribution network and improving the competitiveness of the
Group.

In respect of travel tour ground handling operation, the Group
has commenced its investment plans in local land operators
in Japan and Korea to expand its travel tour ground handling
operation. The Group holds 38% interest in Kabushiki Kaisha EGL
OKINAWA, which was established on Okinawa Island, Japan in
February 2015 by the Group and its non-connected Japanese
business partners to be engaged principally in serving the Group’s
package tours departing Hong Kong and bound for destinations
on Okinawa lIsland, Japan. In South Korea, a travel agency will be
established by the Group and its non-connected Korean business
partners and the Group will hold 38% interest in the new travel
agency, which is to be engaged principally in serving the Group’s
package tours departing Hong Kong and bound for destinations
in Korea. The Group believes that the investment in these two
land operators, which will be officially put into operation in the
second quarter of this year, will effectively improve service quality
control and take dominant role on cost monitoring which helps
to increase profit margin. The Group will also consider further
expansion of the Group’s travel tour ground handling operation in
other destinations.

In terms of the diversification of products and services and the
exploration of business opportunities, the Group will develop
online and mobile sales platforms, refurbish branches and
promote its brand image with various media channels. In addition,
the Group will open a new service center for overseas wedding
services in Central in the third quarter of 2015, and continue to
develop its signature tours and products so as to promote the
popularity of its package tours and enlarge its customer base,
thus increasing its market share and improving its overall business
performance.
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In terms of strengthening operational systems, the Group will
increase the use of charter flights according to market situations
to secure the stability of flight booking, enhance the flexibility of
tour schedule and develop package tours to new destinations.
Meanwhile, the Group will enhance the capability and connectivity
of its central booking system with third-party online booking
systems, and upgrade it to provide sales staff with access to
customer travel information for them to provide more personalized
and consistent customer interaction across all distribution
channels.

The Group will retain, elevate and motivate our dedicated
workforce by offering the staff performance-based remuneration
packages, professional and systematic on-the-job training
programs and diversified career opportunities. To build and
sustain the Group’s culture of excellence, the Group is dedicated
to strengthen the system of succession and development of
its corporate culture through further training and promotion of
outstanding middle level staff. The Group will continue to attract
and recruit suitable staff, particularly experienced and high-
quality operation management talents, tour escorts and sales
representatives.

| would like to extend my sincere gratitude to all the customers,
shareholders and business partners for their continuous support
as well as to the board of directors (the “Board”), the management
and all staff for their diligence, devotions and contributions.

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEHLE GROUP OVERVIEW

HFE2014F 128318 A& E . AEBEE B W The Group reported revenue of approximately HK$1,685.2 million
491,685,200,000/% 7T @ #% = € Y 35 491,647,200,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014, increased by 2.3% as
BT I23%c NAFEHB AFELFE T 4 A compared with the previous year’s revenue of approximately
74,500,000 70 » 82013 AN A A AFE( E % F  HK$1,647.2 million. Net profit attributable to owners of the
#7102,800,000/8 7L, 4127.5% ° 3R Tl R EFE  Company was approximately HK$74.5 million, representing
D RERNE A T E 418,600,000 (2013 : &) a decrease of 27.5% as compared to that of approximately
Fiah o BYEHBES > 4% FTEAE  BEEF & HK$102.8 milion in 2013. The decrease was due to the decrease
2013F 5 19.4% o in gross profit and inclusion of listing expenses of approximately
HK$18.6 million (2013: Nil) during the year. For illustrative
purpose, if the listing expenses were excluded, the net profit
would decrease by 9.4% as compared to that of 2013.

FBRREERZNAE18.20/E1L(2013 : 25.70810L) - Basic earnings per share was HK18.20 cents (2013: HK25.70
cents).

2014% &3 AnnualReport 2014 ()1 1
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The principal activities of the Group encompass provision of
package tours, free independent travellers (“FIT”) packages,
individual travel elements (together with FIT packages as “FIT
Products”) and ancillary travel related products and services.
The Group operates under its well-established and award-
winning corporate brand name “EGL Tours (BRi%)”, promotes
and sells its products through 7 Hong Kong branches, 1 Macau
branch, call centers and online sales platform. To drive business
growth through improving publicity of the Group and enhance
competitiveness, the Company was successfully listed on the
Stock Exchange on 28 November 2014, which marked a new
milestone for the Group’s development. Net proceeds from the
initial public offering (“IPO”), after deducting the underwriting
commission and related expenses in connection with the global
offering, are maintained for the intended purposes as disclosed in
the prospectus. With the aim of maintaining the market position
as one of the leading tour and travel service providers in Hong
Kong, the Group will continue to pursue a sustainable growth
by enhancing its brand image and confidence of the Group’s
consumers and business partners, and facilitating operation and
expansion outside Hong Kong and Macau.

Revenue of the Group was approximately HK$1,685.2 million (2013:
HK$1,647.2 million), a slight increase of approximately HK$38.0
million when compared with previous year. Revenue from package
tours and from ancillary travel related products and services
gained a positive growth of 1.7% and 17.2% respectively, whilst
revenue from FIT Products remained stable as compared to 2013.
The contributions from various business segments for the year
have been set out as follows:
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& Revenue

IR1TE Package tours

BHRITEMD FIT Products

WEEIRTTIER Ancillary travel related
= MR products and services

=) Total

IRTTE Package tours

B H{TE MR FIT Products

SN IRTTIE Ancillary travel related
2o & R products and services

=) Total

2013
BURF
S BPAH  PHKH
Average
Number of revenue per
Amount  customers customer
FET BT
HK$'000 HKS
1,498,836 191,410 7,830
75,725 163,024 464
72,612 EA N/A
1,647,173 354,434
2013
EH EHE
Gross
Gross profit
profit margin
BT Bk
HK$’'000 %
240,604 16.1
75,725 100.0
36,826 50.7
353,155 21.4
2014%F% AnnualReport 2014 ()13
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Vidan=| PACKAGE TOURS

BTBW ST ELSMEERTESSWHNANESE - k7T Revenue from package tours mainly represents tour fees received
EREBKANERETEIW AR - R2014F(EAREE  from customers for outbound package tours. Sale of package
WS 4ASE I £790.5% « TXHFIZEEEIRE MBS tours constituted the main source of income of the Group,

R ARTT B U S A accounting for about 90.5% of the Group’s total revenue in 2014.
The followings set forth the composition of revenue from package
tours by destinations for the years indicated:

2013
G
Wi Revenue Amount
FHET Bootl
HK$’'000 %

HA Japan 822,798 54.9

B ZRASNTE N 3 & Asia ex-Japan 492,611 32.9

BN Rz E A Europe and others 183,427 12.2

Gl Total 1,498,836 100.0

2013
EFI EFI=
Gross
Gross profit
profit margin
FAT Bkt
HK$'000 %

=N Japan 166,487 20.2

B A LASNTE M b [ Asia ex-Japan 57,141 11.6

BOM R E A Europe and others 16,976 9.3

a5t Total 240,604 16.1

01 4 RBFEEZERBERAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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ERN
B A ASN SR M
BOM Ko E

Japan
Asia ex-Japan
Europe and others

&3t Total

JETTE — K
AARITENHEERENAAEBRENEZRR
BREERE - LEZ2014F90A U KBEN B TREY
% o

B AR T B EF R A TR i B AHE B B KK 201454
AH5%EEES% » A MBINREHR A ARRE TR
BROITR - BINTHE 78  ERREHENBESE
FXARHEE )

HE7TE — H RSN 1=

H 7R LA AN T2 M Hb [ AR 1T B W 2= R 5. 7% % 4
464,800,000/ 7t(2013 : 492,600,000/ 7T ) ° 20144F
AN M ENEEEEREC T EHNRE R
FABRETREEEBE - BRATMEKRER R MMZE
RELEMY - Z—HHE  HEARRPIEREMNS - &
BN AZFIIRIT B B9t - A20144F 52 B jk 1T B &) & Bk
AHRITE S BRI #112.1% (2013 : 499.5%) °

20183
BURP
TP AR FHWER
Average
Number of revenue per
customers customer
BIT
HK$
87,228 9,433
92,712 5,313
11,470 15,992
191,410 7,830

Package tours — Japan

Sale of Japan-bound package tours continued to act as a key
source of the Group’s revenue with positive growth, especially
following Japanese Yen (“JPY”) depreciation against Hong Kong
Dollar (“HK$”) since September 2014,

Decrease in gross profit margin for Japan-bound package tours
was due to increase in consumption tax of Japan from 5% to
8% in April 2014 and high demand for travel elements to Japan
from overseas travellers which put upward pressure on the cost
of air tickets, accommodations, meal and domestic ground
transportation, etc.

Package tours — Asia ex-dapan

Revenue from tours bound for Asia ex-Japan recorded a decrease
by 5.7% to approximately HK$464.8 million (2013: HK$492.6
million). The weakening in Asia ex-Japan tours’ operating result in
2014 was mainly due to political instability and unrest happened
in Thailand and Vietnam, missing Malaysia Airlines’ aircraft and
plane crash of an AirAsia aircraft. On the other hand, South Korea
remained a popular travel location for people of Hong Kong and
Macau, where package tours bound for Korea contributed about
12.1% of total package tour revenue in 2014 (2013: about 9.5%).

20145 &3 Annual Report 2014
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Ho 1T B ES G0 - B R EL201 3FRE IR -

B 1T i

R ARENRENF DREIRY - A ARRERRBHE
BRI EREEER] - MARTER KSR FEELE
BERR - 20145 - BEARTTEMMHEE AR EIRE AT
M#I4.5% ° TXHEHIINZFFEIZB NS DA M

TTE MR -

Wz Revenue

A7 Japan

B A LASNTE M b [ Asia ex-Japan
BN & E A Europe and others
&5t Total

Het - BRTTERKEASFRA - BIRAASRIBAENGRIAH
BEERARAEREE ©
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Package tours — Europe and others

The increase in revenue from package tours bound for Europe
and other destinations in 2014 was mainly attributable to increase
in revenue from package tours bound for destinations with higher
tour prices, such as Australia and Western Europe. By lowering
gross margin for tours to Australia and Western Europe, revenue
of tours of relevant destinations increased whilst gross profit
margin decreased slightly as compared to that in 2013.

FIT PRODUCTS

Revenue from FIT Products is recognised on net basis as the
Group renders the services as an agent, responsible for arranging
the booking of air tickets and accommodations on behalf of
service suppliers. Sale of FIT Products accounted for about 4.5%
of the Group’s total revenue in 2014. The followings set forth the
composition of revenue from FIT Products by destinations for the

years indicated:

2013

Amount
FHT Atk
HK$’'000 %
48,739 64.4
24,845 32.8
2,141 2.8
75,725 100.0

Note: Revenue of FIT Products represents the net income, which is the
gross proceeds netted with the associated direct cost.
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2013

PRSI %E Gross proceeds Amount Yield
FHET Bkt

HK$’000 %

=N Japan 390,047 12.5
B A ASNE M b & Asia ex-Japan 259,880 9.6
BOM B2 oA Europe and others 35,643 6.0
&3t Total 685,570 11.0

Biat - BHRITERMORGERIZWE G ARSRIEMESETES  Note: Yield of FIT Products represents the revenue margin calculated as
i o revenue divided by gross proceeds.

2013
BuRF
EYSPN =
Average
Number of revenue per
customers customer
ABIT
HK$
SN Japan 87,843 555
B ZR LA S a0 3 [ Asia ex-Japan 69,027 360
BUM & E A Europe and others 6,154 348
&at Total 163,024 464

2014E %% AnnualReport2014 ()17
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Revenue of Japan and Asia ex-dapan FIT Products showed a
slight decrease in 2014, whilst revenue of FIT Products bound for
Europe and other destinations showed a growth as compared to
2013. Average revenue per customer for FIT Products bound for
Japan, Europe and other destinations increased to approximately
HK$600 (2013: HK$555) and HK$397 (2013: HK$348),
respectively.

Following airlines’ frequent promotion effort on tickets, sale of
FIT Products to destinations including Japan, Taiwan, etc. was
hampered during 2014. Also, increase in consumption tax rate of
Japan from 5% to 8% in April 2014 and slower pace of growth
in demand for Japan FIT Products shadowed the Japan FIT sales
in the third quarter of 2014. Notwithstanding, further depreciation
of JPY against HK$ since September 2014 improved Japan FIT
sales in the fourth quarter of 2014.

For Asia ex-dapan FIT Products segment, revenue was mainly
driven by products bound for destinations including Korea,
Taiwan, Thailand, Malaysia and Singapore. However, as affected
by the political instability and unfavorable incidents discussed
above, the Group experienced a drop in sale of FIT Products
bound for Thailand and Malaysia, leading to the overall decrease
in revenue in this segment.

For FIT Products bound for Europe and other destinations,
favourable increases were mainly attributable to the increase in
revenue for products bound for Europe and for cruises packages,
and increase in the number of customers to Australia. Such
increases were due to the weakening of currencies in such
locations during the year, the increasing supply of cruise products
together with the rising travel interest in market.
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R RTTAE RS Ancillary travel related
EmRRE products and services
RIBEHEE Sale of transportation

tickets
FIREE Sale of admission tickets
wEemiEs Sale of souvenir
IRITIRBR A S WA Commission income from
travel insurance
ERRGEFES Handling fee for
remittance services
HA Others
&5t Total

ANCILLARY TRAVEL RELATED PRODUCTS AND
SERVICES

Revenue from ancillary travel related products mainly represents
income from sale of public transportation tickets for use in Japan,
sale of theme park admission tickets and sale of souvenir to
inbound tour customers. Revenue from ancillary travel related
services mainly represents commission income from travel
insurance services and handling fee for remittance services

provided to souvenir and merchandise suppliers in Japan. The
table below sets forth the breakdown of the Group’s revenue
from ancillary travel related products and services for the years
indicated.

2013

Amount
FHT Bt
HK$’000 %
20,986 28.9
17,171 23.6
1,165 1.6
18,850 26.0
9,898 13.6
4,542 6.3
72,612 100.0
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Revenue from ancillary travel related products and services in
2014 grew by 17.2% to approximately HK$85.1 million (2013:
HK$72.6 million) mainly due to increase in sale of admission
tickets by approximately HK$5.3 million in response to new theme
site in an amusement theme park in Osaka opened in July 2014,
increase in sale of ground transportation by approximately HK$5.5
million for more product items available for sale and increase
in car rental commission income, and increase in commission
income from travel insurance by approximately HK$1.7 million.

The decrease in gross profit margin by 2.7% to 48.0% in 2014
(20183: 50.7%) was mainly due to the changes in product mix
portfolio of the ancillary travel related products and services for
the year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

FEYBHE KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
2013

Ve Current ratio 1.8f=
1.8 times

EIREE & Gearing ratio =
Nil

488 FE [0 Ry R Return on total assets 21.0%
- Ey EIRT RS Return on equity 46.2%
eSS Operating profit margin 7.4%
R 2 Net profit margin 6.2%
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REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

Please see the discussion on the Group’s revenue and gross
profit in “Business Overview” above.

SELLING EXPENSES

Selling expenses of the Group mainly consisted of front line
staff cost, advertising and promotion expenses for media
advertising and promotional activities’ expenses. The Group’s
selling expenses increased by approximately HK$6.0 million, from
HK$85.4 million in 2013 to HK$91.4 million in 2014 mainly due
to increase in frontline staff cost of HK$3.3 million and increase
in advertising and promotion expenses of HK$2.2 million as
compared to 2013.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 14.0%,
from approximately HK$144.9 million in 2013 to approximately
HK$165.1 million in 2014. The increase was mainly driven by
approximately HK$18.6 million legal and professional fees paid
for listing on the Stock Exchange, with approximately HK$1.8
million in excess of HK$16.8 million listing expenses as disclosed
in the prospectus mainly contributed by higher spending on
the printing of the prospectus. The increase in administrative
expenses was also attributable to approximately HK$7.3 million
increase in staff costs and approximately HK$1.8 million increase
in rental expenses, government rent and rates and management
fee as compared to 2013, offset by approximately HK$8.4 million
decrease in directors’ remuneration.

FINANCE COST

Nil finance cost was borne by the Group for the year as the
Group did not have any loans, borrowings or balances due to
related companies or financial institutions throughout 2014 (2013:
about HK$1.3 million).

OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN AND NET PROFIT
MARGIN

Considerable listing expenses borne and gross profit decreased
as described above led to the decreases of operating profit
margin and net profit margin.

20145 F 3K Annual Report 2014

021



EREH R RN
Management Discussion and Analysis

Dl

H013F L& - AEE MR B L X H1.8F 8 =1.9
B EDNETEAREARE BRI EMER
B8R H120134F #9 £9205,700,00058 7T 38 4 & A F E 1) 4
184,400,000/8 7L FTEK »

HEIELLE
AEEMERLEAS (2013 B) - BAKEENE
B R AT B R R -

B L S R IR R SRRt
i H -

ERBRABREE

A8 & O] # K J fE 7 [O] 37K
MEERMEREREREH 5 R15.7% (2013 :
21.0%) }31.8% (2013 : 46.2%) B ML RIGH AR FEE
W e B EEREA418,600,000/8 T ETE A
REREENER -

LB BB T B R

AEBFEEF —ERFRBUHAR - RFERILEZE
TRIERHER - R2014F12A831H » NREEHFIR
% RIR S EBYE4324,400,0005 7T - 201348
#7/330,100,000/& 7T, °

R2014F - BREBHEERSRANERHLIN A%
EEEREROPEBRAEIMARERKRHRES - 1BMH
B RRAMBRAER R EBEBIRAEES - K
EEABE A REENMGREFEARIHFAEE
RBRERMEENE - SEROBTERAE - Am - &
REXARBEMREINMERIBETE  HekReE
BV FE8 T BR#5,700,0008 L h EZE AN AFE
233k A HAR% 2. 49197,400,00078 TTFT 2K ©

022 smmmEBrERAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

CURRENT RATIO

As compared to 2013, current ratio of the Group increased from 1.8
times to 1.9 times, which was mainly due to decrease in accruals,
deposits received and other payables from approximately
HK$205.7 million in 2013 to approximately HK$184.4 million for
the year.

GEARING RATIO

The Group’s gearing ratio was nil (2013: Nil) as the Group did not
have any loans or borrowings as at the respective year ends.

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the total interest-bearing loans
with the total assets as at the respective year and period end.

RETURN ON TOTAL ASSETS AND RETURN ON EQUITY

Return on total assets and return on equity were 15.7% (2013:
21.0%) and 31.8% (2013: 46.2%) respectively and both ratios
declined for the year. The main reason for the decline was the
incurrence and recognition of approximately HK$18.6 million
listing expenses during the year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group continued to sustain a good liquidity position without
drawing any loans or borrowings during the year. As at 31
December 2014, the Group had a net cash and cash equivalent
balance of approximately HK$324.4 million as compared to
approximately HK$330.1 million in 2013.

In 2014, in addition to the strong cash inflow nature of its
business, the Group had financed its business through listing of
its shares on the Stock Exchange, providing source of fund to
strengthen the capital base and enhance its capacity on business
development. Net proceeds from the Group’s IPO are maintained
for intended uses as disclosed in the prospectus which supports
the Group’s further development. Nevertheless, given net
proceeds from IPO received, net cash and cash equivalent
balance decreased by approximately HK$5.7 million was mainly
due to the distribution of interim dividend of approximately
HK$197.4 million during the year.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had pledged bank deposits
of approximately HK$22.0 million (2013: HK$22.3 million) to
certain licensed banks in Hong Kong and Macau to secure letters
of guarantee issued to certain third parties on behalf of the
Group. Total guarantees amounted to approximately HK$16.9
million (2013: HK$15.3 million), which were mainly issued to our
suppliers, such as airlines and hotels, to guarantee our trade
payable balances due to them. Saved as disclosed above, there
have been no other pledge of assets.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had capital commitment
of approximately HK$0.3 million (2013: Nil), to acquire property,
plant and equipment of the Group which was expected to be
funded by the Group’s internal resources.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) considered that
there were no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2014.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RISK AND
TREASURY POLICIES

Foreign currency exchange risk exposure is encountered by the
Group to the extent that receipts from customers and payments
to suppliers may not be reconciled, subject to prevailing foreign
currency fluctuations. The Group had implemented foreign
exchange risk management procedures to closely monitor the
risk exposure. The procedures were established to prevent
carrying excessive cash balance in foreign currencies, of which
the purchase amounts were limited to the corresponding costs of
travel elements based on estimated sales amount for a defined
period (one week for JPY and two weeks for other foreign
currencies), to fully cover the foreign exchange exposure thereto.

20145 F 3K Annual Report 2014
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Other than the transactional foreign currency exchange risk,
assets and liabilities of the Group are mainly denominated in
its own functional currency. The Group’s treasury management
policy is to place surplus cash into bank deposits with licensed
banks in Hong Kong, Macau and Japan, Also, working capital
are centrally managed to ensure proper and efficient collection
and deployment of funds, and sufficient funds to settle liabilities
when they fall due. During 2014, exchange loss from translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the Group was approximately
HK$5.8 million (2013: HK$14.4 million), whilst transactional gain
arising from the difference of exchange rates between recording
and settlement of the expenses was approximately HK$2.3 million
(2013: HK$5.6 million), resulting in net foreign exchange loss of
approximately HK$3.5 million (2013: HK$8.8 million).

HUMAN RESOURCES AND EMPLOYEE’S
REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total workforce of
677 (as at 31 December 2013: 680), of which 217 were full-
time tour escorts. Employee’s remuneration and benefits-in-
kind, contributions to retirement schemes, including that of the
directors, for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to
approximately HK$147.1 million (2013: HK$144.9 million), the
increase was mainly contributed by approximately HK$10.6 million
increase in staff costs and approximately HK$8.4 million decrease
in director’s remuneration. The increase of staff costs was due
to about 4% increase in average number of staff with payroll and
pay rise of about 5% during 2014.

Employees’ remuneration packages are determined with reference
to the market information and individual performance and will
be reviewed on a regular basis. The remuneration policy will
be reviewed by the Board from time to time. Emoluments of
directors are determined by the Remuneration Committee after
considering the Group’s operating results, individual performance
and comparing with market conditions. In addition to basic
remuneration, the Group also provides medical insurance,
provident funds and other benefits in kind.
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To intensify personnel training and development, the Group
provides a series of in-house employee training programmes,
which aims to accelerate professional growth and identifies
competences and talents of diversified teams. Through operating
talent development scheme, the Group has successfully extended
the recruitment channels and enhanced the opportunities on the
hiring of high-quality and suitable staff. High potential staff will be
groomed and developed intensively according to the promotion
plan towards the management level. To attract and retain the
suitable personnel for the development of the Group, the Group
had conditionally adopted a share option scheme since November
2014, share options may be granted to eligible employees of
the Group as a long-term incentive. No share options had been
granted, lapsed or exercised during the year. In 2014, there was
no significant change in the remuneration policies, bonus, share
option scheme and training scheme for the Group.

OUTLOOK

Facing the business environment full of market challenges and
opportunities, the Group always upholds the motto “Strive for
consistent improvement of high-quality service, with customers
in our heart and sincerity in our practice” and strives for success.
The Group will continue to implement its business strategy
as planned to cater for the diversified needs and interests of
customers and actively explore new flourishing opportunities.

One of the Group’s strategic moves is to expand into PRC
travel service market by engaging local travel agencies in cities
in Guangdong Province. The Group targets to commence the
business plan in the second half of 2015 for market penetration in
PRC.
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With respect to expand travel tour ground handling operation, the
Group has captured investment opportunities on ground operator
in Japan and Korea. A travel agency company, Kabushiki Kaisha
EGL OKINAWA, was set up in Okinawa, Japan which will mainly
handle the package tours from the Group. The Group held
its 38% shareholding with investment amount approximately
HK$250,000. A travel agency company will be set up in Korea
which will mainly handle the package tours from the Group. The
Group will hold its 38% shareholding with investment amount
approximately HK$800,000. Both investments are financed
with internally generated cash flows from operation. The Group
believes these investments will further enhance the Group’s
capability to improve integrated service capabilities, strengthen its
service platform and face less price pressure in the near future.

Going forward, the net proceeds from IPO will be used according
to the plans listed in the prospectus. The Group will continue
to reinforce its business strategies to enhance productivity
and generate greater returns for its shareholders, partners and
customers in the wake of market challenges and uncertainties.
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For the year ended 31 December

2013 2012 2011
FHIT FHEIT T
E Results HK$ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Wz Revenue
IRITE Package tours 1,498,836 1,252,821 1,154,513
BHITEmM FIT Products 75,725 56,701 44,728
BN\ IRTT AR RS Ancillary travel related products
o MRS and services 72,612 55,083 47,448
1,647,173 1,364,605 1,246,689
EF Gross Profit
IRTT Package tours 240,604 143,480 126,534
BHITEM FIT Products 75,725 56,701 44,728
5B TR TT AR Ancillary travel related products
Em R RS and services 36,826 27,727 24,743
353,155 227,908 196,005
HAb Uy A R dezs Other income and
(E518) 558 gains/(losses), net (2,605) 4,446 8,946
PTHESRTA Net realised and unrealised
BRI R ARES (loss)/gain on derivative
(F518) /W35 financial instruments 2146 ) _
FREFSEE AT & A Profit before income tax 121,097 45,981 18,057
PGB Income tax expense (18,309) (4,943) (3,063)
FEREF Profit for the year 102,788 41,038 14,994
NARER AEMRFEF] Net profit attributable to
owners of the Company 102,788 41,038 14,994
BRRMOEBE Per share data
SIRETF Earnings per share
— E AR HEEE (L) — Basic and diluted (HK cents) 25.70 10.26 3.75
Bi#§LE =& Financial ratios
FEHE Gross profit margin 21.4% 16.7% 15.7%
F & Net profit margin 6.2% 3.0% 1.2%
488 EE Bl R R Return on total assets 21.0% 11.9% 4.5%
T 7 0] 3 R Return on equity 46.2% 25.0% 12.2%
YR S Gearing ratio = Nil = Nil = Nil
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M12A31H
As at 31 December
2013 2012 2011
FAET FAT FAT
EEREE Assets and liabilities HKS$ " 000 HKS$ 000 HK$’ 000
BEE Total assets 490,057 344,992 330,503
FEN=Er Total liabilities (267,594) (180,564) (207,113)

222,463 164,428 123,390

VNN F SNy Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 222,463 164,428 123,390
Miatt FskE BB ERNEZE20119F - 201249 2013 Note 1: The results and summary of assets and liabilities for the
F12ABAILEFENEEUREERABRET years ended 31 December 2011, 2012 and 2013 which
RAENEERR  DETASEES  BOEEHE were extracted from the prospectus have been prepared on
RERARARDEBZ MR ETRRZEF a combined basis to indicate the results of the Group as if
E—EFE - the group structure, at the time when the Company’s shares

were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, has
been in existence throughout those years.

Kie2 : BIESARAR - IR T 418,600,000%  Note 2: For illustrative purpose, if listing expenses amounted to
7T(2013: &) - BHE2014F12A831B IEFE R approximately HK$18.6 million (2013: Nil) were excluded, the
NAEHEB ARG F R T 49 493,100,000 7T + & net profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year
2013 &R 1 9.4% ended 31 December 2014 would be approximately HK$93.1
million, a slight decrease of 9.4% as compared to that of
2013.
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014.

GROUP REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 24
July 2014 as an exempted company with limited liability. Pursuant
to the reorganisation arrangements undertaken by the Group in
preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange, the Company became the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group. For details of the group
reorganisation, please refer to the paragraph headed “History,
Reorganisation and Corporate Structure” in the prospectus dated
18 November 2014 (the “Prospectus”) issued by the Company.
The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6882) since 28 November
2014 (the “Listing Date”).
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 18(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at that
date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages
69 to 140.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Net profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$74.5 million have been transferred to reserves. Movements
in the reserves of the Group are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. The Directors do not recommend
the payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2014 (2013: Nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, no reserve was available for distribution
to shareholders of the Company (2013: Nil).

20145 F 3K Annual Report 2014

031



Report of the Directors

MBHE

AEFEBEAAMRFEZEEAREEREERES
RARFIRE27E298 °

ME ~ BB KRR

REEBRFRNME  BELREZEHFBHNEE
R EMITE6 -

PR

ARBABRARFAZEHHBTENGE YRR E
28 c ARRIFARBERXARBEERETRD -

BE - HENBOAARAZLWES

B EXHEEEIN  ARRSKETRAHBEARSE EH
AHEIZ=2014F12 A31H IF BB ([HEREEARE |) @ BE &g
- HEdERANGZ FHES -

BrEBEEE
ARG EIMA ([ FIZMA ) P2 B B R

FIABRELEBERE 2GR REARRBARLAIFR
BRRBEEHRND

EERT

7N & B P 1R & 1B F04Y1,500,000/% 7T (2013 ¢
700,000/ 7T) °

032 RRPEZERBMR AT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
|

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last four financial years are set out on pages 27 to 29 of
this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements. Shares were issued during the year pursuant to the
Company’s IPO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed above, there was no purchase, sale or
redemption of the Company’s listed securities by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries during the period from the Listing Date to
31 December 2014 (the “Relevant Period”).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association (the “Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$1.5 million (2013: HK$0.7 million).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount
of turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
represent less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover.

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

EAEE
REBEADL
Percentage of
the Group’s Total

Purchases
BAREIER The largest supplier 19.0%
SRR G Five largest suppliers in aggregate 33.8%
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At no time during the year did the Directors, their close associates
or any shareholders of the Company (which to the best knowledge
of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) have any interest in any of the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman) (appointed on 24 July 2014)
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen (appointed on 24 July 2014)

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu (appointed on 24 July 2014)

Ms. Lee Po Fun (appointed on 24 July 2014)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chan Kim Fai (appointed on 13 November 2014)

Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric (appointed on 13 November 2014)
Ms. Wong Lai Ming (appointed on 13 November 2014)
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Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles, the Board shall have the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as addition to
the Board. Any director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting. Any director appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation. By virtue of Articles 108 and 112 of the
Articles, all the Directors, namely, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen
Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, Ms. Lee Po Fun, Mr. Chan
Kim Fai, Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming will
retire from office at the 2015 Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
of the Company and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 61 to 66 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the AGM has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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EEN2014F12A31ARAR R R ETAMEEEH (F  As at 31 December 2014, the interests or short positions of
= BB A L EIRDIEXVEN A Z & - HBEERH & the Directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
BEEHEPBREEELBPEKRIEXNVEETRSS B E  of the Company and any of its associated corporations (within
RATIRESZEZTAR (BIEREDBAEREEK  the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance
BEZEBRTR AN EERESE LR THRASES 2  (the “SFO”), which were required to be notified to the Company
HRAKE) BB EE LB EIEAIE3521AE %5 and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
Gt s B RS RARE - SRE EmHRBIETE XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which the
(ETHRTIESHTEAR HHEESFR)Y ([1@%<r8]|) directors and chief executive were deemed or taken to have under
BHIERNNT MBI EZ AR - such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register therein,
or were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) were as follows:
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Name of Associated

Name of Directors Corporation

Nature of Interest

Total Number of
Shares Held in
the Associated

Corporation

Approximate %
of Interest in the
Associated
Corporation

RXHEFE(EZFE -7 REEEEEERART BB

ERERIBIZA (ATaET)

EEY (MBEEE] 8,850 26.70
Mr. Yuen Man Ying Evergloss Management  Founder of a discretionary

(Chairman, Executive Group Company trust (Note 1)

Director) Limited (“Evergloss”)
BE2EE(BMITES) RBEER AR EHEE R

(Btaz2) 7,650 23.08

Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen Evergloss Interest of a controlled

(Executive Director) corporation (Note 2)
RRE)EE(BITES) RBEER EnEBAA 3,300 9.95
Mr. Leung Shing Chiu Evergloss Beneficial owner

(Executive Director)

BERSLE(HTES) BREER HizF1k3 9,150 27.60
Ms. Lee Po Fun (Executive Evergloss Notes 1 & 3

Director)
et - Note:

1. FIEAERAEFE
Al Tvﬁﬁ&ﬂ%aﬂ'é&%oﬁxﬂxh * Fiducia Suisse SA
AThe Yuen Family 2014 Trustf5Z5EA * MThe Yuen
Family 2014 Trust 8RN ELREUEZFFERS L LR
ZREBENE(GRRXELENBEAN) ABBEZ R

BB E

2. HEZERERAREHE] -
B)EAREEIET 65008 81%

3. 9,150 BEE B - FIFE(Fiducia Suisse SAZ%E 3.

&I 8~ ) 35 B58,8500% i 17 + Fiducia Suisse SA%
The Yuen Family 2014 TrustfI:EA « TBH K+ A
ZEEEBEAZ— c BTN EREERNHATES
TEEABEZBEBAGES -

036 RRPEZERBMR AT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

> (Fiducia Suisse SAZ & WE 1.

(BB EEEEER 2

The 8,850 shares in Evergloss were held by Likang Limited (“Likang”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fiducia Suisse SA which is the trustee
of The Yuen Family 2014 Trust, which is a discretionary trust set
up by Mr. Yuen Man Ying whose discretionary objects are Ms. Lee
Po Fun and Ms. Yuen Ho Yee, wife and daughter of Mr. Yuen Man
Ying respectively and both an associate of Mr. Yuen Man Ying.

The 7,650 shares in Evergloss were held by Kwok Lai Holdings
Limited (“Kwok Lai”), which is directly wholly-owned by Mr. Huen
Kwok Chuen.

Out of the 9,150 shares in Evergloss, 8,850 shares were held by
Likang, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fiducia Suisse SA which is the
trustee of The Yuen Family 2014 Trust. Ms. Lee Po Fun is one of
the beneficiaries of the trust. The remaining 300 shares in Evergloss
were held by Ms. Lee Po Fun as the beneficial owner.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of
the Directors had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company, or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), which had been recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which had been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, the persons (other than the Directors)
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section

REREE

Name of Shareholders

336 of the SFO were as follows:

EEME

Nature of Interest

FELAAROHE

Total Number
of Shares Held

HEBTRAR
BMOB DL
Approximate
Percentage of
the Issued
Share Capital

RhREERE
Evergloss

Fiducia Suisse SA

HILL David Henry Christopher

HILL Rebecca Ann

BEEEERAA

Value Partners Group Limited

BESEREES
Value Partners High-Dividend Stocks Fund

BtaEt
Note 1

i it2
Note 2

Bt5#3
Note 3

Wiita
Note 4

Eml%ﬁﬁ/\
Beneficial owner capacity

Em%&ﬁ/\
Beneficial owner capacity

375,000,000 (L)

375,000,000 (L)

375,000,000 (L)

375,000,000 (L)

31,258,000 (L)

25,172,000 (L)

74.63

74.63

74.63

74.63

6.22

5.00

L e

(L) Long position
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Note:

1. 375,000,000 shares were held by Evergloss in a beneficial owner
capacity.

2. 375,000,000 shares were held by Evergloss. Evergloss was owned

as to approximately 26.70% by Likang and 26.24% by Yohki
Ryokoh Limited (“Yohki”). Both of Likang and Yohki are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of Fiducia Suisse SA, which is the trustee of two
discretionary family trusts, namely () The Yuen Family 2014 Trust,
which is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman,
Executive Director, “Mr. Yuen”) whose discretionary objects are Ms.
Lee Po Fun (an Executive Director) and Ms. Yuen Ho Yee, wife and
daughter of Mr. Yuen respectively and both an associate of Mr.
Yuen; (i) Happyyau Family Trust, which is a discretionary trust set
up by Mr. Yau Shui Fung whose discretionary objects are Ms. Li Siu
King, wife and an associate of Mr. Yau Shui Fung, and Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals.

3. Fiducia Suisse SA was held by Mr. Hill David Henry Christopher
who has a deemed interest of 375,000,000 shares in the Company.

4. Ms. Hill Rebecca Ann is a spouse of Mr. Hill David Henry
Christopher who has a deemed interest of 375,000,000 shares in
the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
disclosed below, at no time during the year, the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party to any
arrangements which would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or its subsidiaries. Save as disclosed in this
report, none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18 was granted any right to subscribe for the
shares or debentures of the Company or its subsidiaries or had
exercised any such right during the year.
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DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

As at 31 December 2014, the Directors were not aware of
any business or interest of the Directors and their respective
associates that had competed or might compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interests which
any such person had or might have with the Group.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Board on the basis of their performance, qualifications,
competence and job nature.

The remuneration of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance
and comparing with market conditions. The Company has
adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to eligible
employees.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the retirement scheme of the Group are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital is held by the public under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE IPO

In November 2014, the Company conducted a global offering
which included the sales of 127,450,000 ordinary shares,
comprising (i) 100,000,000 new shares issued and allotted by the
Company; (i) 25,000,000 sale shares offered by the shareholder;
and (iii) 2,450,000 ordinary shares allotted and issued upon
partial exercise of the over-allotment option, at an offer price
of HK$1.39 per share. Net proceeds received by the Company
were approximately HK$115.8 million. The ordinary shares of the
Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 28 November
2014.

As stated in the Company’s Prospectus, the Company intends to
use the proceeds for (i) enhancing the Group’s sales channels;
(i) promoting the Group’s brand image and recognition through
marketing initiatives; (i) strengthening operational infrastructure to
deliver sustainable growth; (iv) developing overseas wedding tours;
(v) working capital and other general corporate purposes. During
the year, the net proceeds from the listing were not utilised.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 13 November 2014 and shall be valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from that date, subject to early
termination by the Company in a general meeting or by the
Board. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives to Eligible Person (as defined below) and is established
to recognise and acknowledge the contributions the Eligible
Person have had or may have made to the Group. Under the
Share Option Scheme, the Board may offer to grant an option to
any employee, or any secondee, consultant, agent, representative,
adviser, customer, contractor of the Group or any affiliates; or
any business partner/ally/alliance, joint venture partner, supplier of
goods or services to the Group or any affiliates or any employee
thereof (the “Eligible Person”).



EREE

GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERE
Report of the Directors

RAREAR T 8 R AR AT A AR IR H B
FIIE 2B RITEBREEITER TR 2R M
EEMRFERTEBBEEITRM Z10%  RIFFERERT
Bl ARR BN 2 B A BE AR M AT B P R 4R 2 BE AR T
AHBETZRNEBESEE T SBRAZEE N ARBER
BRiEBEEITIRNEB 10% (ETET REABEEKRE(EE
RRRER)EITEmal fER B sk 81T 2 AR ) - BD
50,000,000/ %17 - BRIEEAR AR R R BRE NS #
# o BRIRER12E A HE - RIZERESERNESAE
B2MEERT 2 EREETERDBITRAEEIT 2R
DBETFRBAREL AREHTRMHEE1% -

RIBBERER B E 2 S EBRE 2 R RBEAR
MEFEEET  BIBLIRTIERSE  (INREBEH
(EHARZERH)  BXATRAMEIIRMERZ BN
MmE () BERE BB ESX A RBRMEE®RE
IR PR 2 B U THE + Re(iiin 2 E{E

R RIEREE - REABRRA TR
SEREIRAE 2 (R 18 o BB AR T SRR AT B (AR A AR
MR AT B A B RS B R T EE AT
RIRE ST o BREZ (TR M E F e 2RI EE -
W TS RRIBIR 14+ o

HE2014F12A31 B IEFE - ARG ERIEERE
SHENR BB -

The shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company at
any time shall not exceed 10% of the shares in issue from time
to time. The maximum number of shares available for issue under
options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
or other share option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue immediately
following completion of the IPO (but taking no account of any
shares which may be allotted or issued pursuant to the exercise
of the over-allotment option (as defined in the Prospectus)),
being 50,000,000 shares. The total number of shares issued and
which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to each Eligible Person
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the number of
shares in issue as at the date of grant unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board provided that it shall not be less than
the highest of: () the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (i) the nominal value of a share.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant. An option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option
is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry
of 10 years from that date. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10
years after it has been granted.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, no option was granted by
the Company under the Share Option Scheme.
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As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was
50,000,000 shares representing 9.95% of the issued share capital
of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions subject to
annual reporting and annual review requirements

Continuing connected transactions (“CCT”) (including EGL Tower
Lease Agreement, EGL Tower Lease 10B Agreement, EGL Tower
Lease 16A Agreement, Chevalier House Lease Agreement and
China Plaza Lease Agreements, all of which were defined below)
have been entered into (collectively the “Transactions”) between
the Group and Great Port Limited (“Great Port”) (Note 1) during
the financial year 2014. As disclosed in the Prospectus, the
aggregate annual caps of these Transactions exceeded 0.1%
but less than 5% of the relevant percentage ratios under the
Listing Rules, and are therefore exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements but are still subject to the
annual reporting and annual review requirements under the Listing
Rules. Please refer to the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in the Prospectus for further details.

Set out below are the details of the CCT which are required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 14A.49 and 14A.71 of the Listing
Rules. The consideration for 2014 represents the value of the
relevant CCT for the full 12 months for 2014.
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hEEE AR
BEENHRRES
Name, Date and Current
Term of the Agreement
No.  and Rental

il

ARBRSH

Transaction Party
within the Group

EREE

GOVERNANCE REPORT

ARHE HERRSHR

Counter party, Nature and
Description of the Transaction

R7EH

Transaction
Purpose

EEER

Basis for Determining the
Consideration

014525
(B71)

Consideration for
2014 (HKS)

1 MEHEN2014E11 713
BRI REpESRE
EA)

TAHE - 2014511 A1H
220174107318

Al
866,604/

1 Lease agreement signed
on 13 November 2014
("EGL Tower Lease
Agreement”)

Term: From 1 November
2014 to 31 October 2017

Monthly rental:
HK$866,604

2 %H‘*Tﬁijémzo14¢ﬂﬂ1s
(I RREES108H
fﬁﬁﬁ

ROHE - 2014511 518
22017104318

AT 43,700 7T

2 Lease agreement signed
on 13 November 2014
("EGL Tower 10B Lease

Agreement”)

Term: From 1 November
2014 to 31 October 2017

Monthly rental: HK$43,700

RRERTHERA
a([RRE]) AR
A EE2ENBA

A
Al

EGL Tours Company
Limited ("EGL
Tours”), an indirect
wholly-owned
subsidiary of the
Company

Rl - ARAIZE
ERENBAR

EGL Tours, an
indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of
the Company

WERBAETHTRER

BENEEEERRREES
(10BARCEL 121 - 15 R
16ELB(16IEAZRIN 2IEE
ATEH44,616FFERANE
(21815 « 18E 235 EE A1)
¥ R(ioMEEs

Property leased by Great Port to
EGL Tours

(i) the premises of a total gross
floor area of approximately
44,616 sq.ft. located at Units
A&GC on 10/F, whole floors of
12/F, 15/F & 16/F (except Unit A,
16/F), (i) the premises located
at car park nos. P15, P18 to
P23 on 2/F, and (iii) signage at
external wall of EGL Tower, 83
Hung To Road, Kowloon, Hong
Kong

WEAAETHTREE

BRNEBEESRRRREES
10BBEREAEEA2,3007 A
EYNGOLES

Property leased by Great Port to
EGL Tours

The premises of a total gross
floor area of approximately 2,300
sq.ft. located at Unit B, 10/F,
EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

AR
SRARERME
R

For using as its
head office, car
park spaces and
for rental of signage
at external wall for
advertising

SRR R

For using as its head
office

HeEET A THERET
ARERFENRNF AR
R ERESEATAE [A
—RARER BRODEMLE
BNERRITH BN -

The rental was determined
based on arm's length
negotiations between the parties
and is fair and reasonable,

on normal commercial terms
and comparable to and are on
terms no less favorable than
the prevailing market rate as
confirmed by an independent
property valuer engaged by the
Group.

e PN A AT RELER
AREEBNEINE(ENE
7 BUELBLTAR B2
—$BER RRTTREE

RBRBTROA -

The rental was determined
based on arm's length
negotiations between the parties
and is fair and reasonable,

on normal commercial terms
and comparable to and are on
terms no less favorable than
the prevailing market rate as
confirmed by an independent
property valuer engaged by the
Group.
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mEER - BER 014588
B REGNERRES REERSH AREE  HERRSHR LR EEEH (B7)
Name, Date and Current
Term of the Agreement  Transaction Party ~ Counter party, Nature and Transaction Basis for Determining the Consideration for
No.  and Rental within the Group Description of the Transaction ~ Purpose Consideration 2014 (HKS)
8 BEHER014EN A1 BRIRTHARRAR  MERAETETRERTH AR IERE REDEEFRTHARET 261,600
BRI RRERS AR  ((BBRML)) & AEERFNBUNFHAEME
ghEl) RAZAEZENE AANEBEESRRFERS R EEHSEATRE e
AF 1BIEAZ ARSI, 20075 —REEES - BRITERE
AR : 2014511 A18 ERMME BRERRITHENGER -
Z2017F10A31H
Al 22,8008 T
3 Lease agreement signed  i-Evertravel Property leased by Great Port to  For using as its head ~ The rental was determined 261,600
on 13 November 2014 Company Limited i-Evertravel office based on arm's length
("EGL Tower 16A Lease  (“i-Evertravel’), an negotiations between the parties
Agreement”) indirect wholly- The premises of a total gross and is fair and reasonable,
owned subsidiary of  floor area of approximately 1,200 on normal commercial terms
Term: From 1 November ~ the Company so.ft. located at Unit A, 16/F, and comparable to and are on
2014 to 31 October 2017 EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, terms no less favorable than
Kowloon, Hong Kong the prevailing market rate as
Monthly rental; HK$22,800 confirmed by an independent
property valuer engaged by the
Group.
4 HERSEN0EIIAS RERE - ARRCE DESAROCRTRERE DHAER AR RenEEFATHERET 1,475,300
RRI(HTAERER H2EAMERR PITHER REERENBUME LB
#l) BENERRER45-61 R AT R HERSELATRE FE
KE5E1:2:3-4:5 658 —RARER - BROHERE
AR  2014F11 A18 EEEEL6,366 T A ERMME BRBRBITHBAER «
Z2017F10A317
A7 < 159,150 7T
4 Lease agreement signed  EGL Tours, an Property leased by Great Port to  For using as a tea The rental was determined 1,475,300

on 13 November 2014
(“Chevalier House Lease
Agreement’)

Term: From 1 November
2014 to 31 October 2017

Monthly rental:
HK$159,150

indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of
the Company

EGL Tours

The premises of a total gross
floor area of approximately 6,366
so.ft. located at Units Nos. 1,
2,3, 4,5, 6, 5/F of Chevalier
House, 45-51 Chatham Road
South, Kowloon, Hong Kong

044 smmmmrERAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

party room and the
branch office

based on arm’s length
negotiations between the parties
and is fair and reasonable,

on normal commercial terms
and comparable to and are on
terms no less favorable than

the prevailing market rate as
confirmed by an independent
property valuer engaged by the
Group.
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&% RAELNBRRES TRERSH AREE  HERRZHR REEMH EEEHR (B71)
Name, Date and Current
Term of the Agreement  Transaction Party ~ Counter party, Nature and Transaction Basis for Determining the Consideration for
No.  and Rental within the Group Description of the Transaction  Purpose Consideration 2014 (HKS)
5  mOREHER014FN  REBRTH (R DEAREOCRTREERTE  IHERERFHE BeNSEHRLTHERET 1,453,236
RIBBEI(GRIEE ) ARRA AR (FF) BRAF BREFHEDD  AEEREOBUNEHENR
SREhE]) mBELERBR R HERSEATRE #E
] RFNBmE R SHK2-6B%KHE —REEGR - BERTTERE
AR : 2014511818 REH730-804%%()10BME L2 BRERBITHBMER o
Z2017510A31R HEBLH3 60T FERMWE :
(i1OENZBEEEEL1,000F
BAT - 164,3642M 7T FERBWME (it TBEHT
EREEAERELN,159T HERK
IE
5 Two lease agreements EGL Tours (Macau) ~ Property leased by Great Port For using as the The rental was determined 1,453,236

signed on 13 November
2014 (Collectively, the
“China Plaza Lease
Agreements’)

Term for each lease: From
1 November 2014 to 31
October 2017

Aggregate monthly rental:
MOP164,364

WaEt -

RETA—BRRBEARARRTEFRNALE - TEHL
T BB 2 A R RK &5 A 9 RliE A £926.70% * 0.90% -
23.08% 5 9.95% K f& #E - #2 TARMEFRYohki ~ AR A E A A
RREZESMERLE  BERAXERFRESEDRFS
#4926.24%  4.98% ~ 4.98% K% 3.17% M4 B E KL
EBEREENE R R FRYERRBRTHNES - KQAH
TEEHRAEHAET460.63%MEZH - Bt RiIELE™

Company Limited,
an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of
the Company

FRAKBTAARBRRNTEENBEA -

Macau office and
call centre

to EGL Tours (Macau) Company
Limited

(i) the premises of a total gross
floor area of approximately
3,460 sq.ft. located at Unit M,
10/F, (ii) the premises of a total
gross floor area of approximately
1,000 sq.ft. located at Unit

N, 10/F, and (i) the premises
of a total saleable floor area

of approximately 1,159 sq.ft.
located at Shop B, G/F of Nos.
730-804 Avenida da Praia
Grande, Nos. 2-6B Avenida de
D Joao IV, Macau

Note 1:

based on arm’s length

negotiations between the parties

and is fair and reasonable,

on normal commercial terms
and comparable to and are on
terms no less favorable than
the prevailing market rate as
confirmed by an independent
property valuer engaged by the
Group.

Great Port is a company owned by Mr. Yuen Man Ying as to
approximately 26.70%, Ms. Lee Po Fun as to approximately 0.90%, Mr.
Huen Kwok Chuen as to approximately 23.08%, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu as
to approximately 9.95%, being the Executive Directors of the Company
and the remaining interests are owned by Yohki as to approximately
26.24%, Mr. Lam Wai Man as to approximately 4.98%, Mr. Lui Lok Pun
as to approximately 4.98% and Mr. Chong Cheung Po as to approximately

3.17%. Mr. Lam, Mr. Lui and Mr. Chong were directors of the Group’s

subsidiaries, EGL Tours and i-Evertravel. The Executive Directors of the

Company together controlled approximately 60.63% voting power of Great

Port, and therefore Great Port is an associate of the Executive Directors

of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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The above CCT are included in “Rental paid to a related company
— Great Port” in related party transactions disclosed in note
32(a) in the notes to the consolidated financial statements in
this annual report. Save as disclosed above, no other related
party transactions in the year constitute a continuing connected
transaction as defined under the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, no contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director and a controlling
shareholder of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions entered into by the Group and
have confirmed that these continuing connected transactions
were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and (i) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

The Company’s external auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the HKICPA. The external auditor
issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions
in respect of the transactions disclosed in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Main Board Listing Rules.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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% B AUDITOR

HE2014F12A31B I EE 2G5 EHEEHREHSE  The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
VEESZSHMELRMERATNEZ i EemEgiE  December 2014 have been audited by BDO Limited who will
F - UHEABRESERE - REFEAS FHIZ2 ki retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A
R PEREETEESSHMERMAR AR AL/ resolution for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as auditor of the

AIFZELAD o Company is to be proposed at the AGM.
EEEE By order of the Board

FREFHNTEE Yuen Man Ying

R H Chairman and Executive Director

A% 201563 H23H Hong Kong, 23 March 2015
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overnance Report

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed in
achieving a high standard of corporate governance and leading
the Group to attain better results and improve its corporate image
with effective corporate governance procedures.

The shares commenced trading on the Stock Exchange on 28
November 2014. Since listing, the Board is of opinion that the
Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiries have been made with all the Directors and they
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
during the Relevant Period.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF AND DELEGATION BY THE
BOARD

The Board provides leadership, guidance and strategic decisions
to the Group’s activities and oversees its financial performances.
The Board has delegated its powers to the management for the
Group’s daily management and operations.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

Currently, the Board comprises four Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors. At least one of the
Independent Non-executive Directors possess the appropriate
professional accounting qualifications and financial management
expertise, which complies with the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with rules 3.10 and 3.10A
of the Listing Rules. During the Relevant Period, the number of
Independent Non-executive Directors represents more than one-
third of the Board. As such, there exists a strong independent
element in the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgment. The Board comprises the following Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu

Ms. Lee Po Fun

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric
Ms. Wong Lai Ming

The Chairman and Executive Director, Mr. Yuen Man Ying is
the spouse of Ms. Lee Po Fun, an Executive Director. All of the
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok
Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun, are interested
in the Company’s shares through their interest in Evergloss
Management Group Company Limited, an associate corporation
of the Company. All of the Executive Directors have interests in
the shares of Great Port Limited, which has certain continuing
connected transactions with the Company. Please refer to the
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”, “Report
of the Directors — Interests in shares of the associated corporation
of the Company” and “Report of the Directors - Connected
Transactions and Directors’ Interests in Contracts” on pages 61 to
62, page 36 and pages 42 to 46 in this annual report respectively
for more details. Save as disclosed above, the Directors have
no other financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships with one another.
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INDEPENDENCE OF
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT NON-

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Directors, a written confirmation of his independence to the
Company pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to
be independent in accordance with the relevant guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’
DEVELOPMENT

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development courses and seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. During the financial year, the
Company arranged an in-house seminar covering the topic of
Listing Rules and Companies Ordinance with training materials
provided.

According to records provided by the Directors, a summary
of training received by the Directors for the financial year is as
follows:

L3R AR 2 BMR G A9 EE
Training on Listing Rules
and Companies Ordinance

HITES Executive Directors

RXERE(FE) Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman) J
THE 2 5 & Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen v
PRk &) A Mr. Leung Shing Chiu J
FERSLZL Ms. Lee Po Fun J
BYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors

PRGBS A Mr. Chan Kim Fai v
B ST A Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric J
=EBEALT Ms. Wong Lai Ming J
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company on 13 November 2014 for a term
of three years commencing from the Listing Date. Each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors was appointed to the
Board pursuant to the respective letters of appointment dated
13 November 2014 for an initial term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of the directors are governed by the Articles. The
appointment of each of the Directors is subject to his re-election
at an AGM upon retirement. The Articles provides that any
director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the
Board shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and shall then be eligible for re-
election at such meeting. Any director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following AGM of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election.

In accordance with the Articles, at each AGM of the Company,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to, but not less
than, one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at least once
every 3 years. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, all the Directors, namely, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr.
Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, Ms. Lee Po Fun, Mr.
Chan Kim Fai, Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming
shall retire at the AGM. All of the retiring Directors, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the same meeting.

BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.
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Pursuant to the CG Code provision A.1.1, the Board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four times a
year.

If a director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
director shall abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions and
he/she shall not be counted as a quorum in the Board meeting
discussing the matter concerned.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF MEETINGS

Set out below are details of the attendance record of each
director at the Board and committee meetings of the Company
held during the financial year:

HE/ BITHERRH
Attendance/Number of Meetings held
B EkEE b )
EX88E £Z£ESS82 ZES83% ZESgE ZE283
Risk
Audit Management ~ Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
HITES Executive Directors
RXHEEE Mr. Yuen Man Ying 6/6 - - - -
PREEEE Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen 6/6 - - - -
2SI E Mr. Leung Shing Chiu 6/6 - - - -
EL N Ms. Lee Po Fun 6/6 - - - -
BUEHITES Independent Non-executive
Directors
BRIIE T4 Mr. Chan Kim Fai 2/2 - - - -
Rt Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric 2/2 - - - -
HEEHRZL Ms. Wong Lai Ming 2/2 - - - -
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GENERAL MEETING

As the Company was only listed on the Stock Exchange on 28
November 2014, no general meeting was held during the year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Risk
Management Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. All the Board Committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference which are available to shareholders on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board Committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 13 November 2014
with terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Audit Committee comprises a total of three members, all being
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Kim Fai
(Chairman), Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.
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The primary responsibilities of the audit committee include,
among others, (i) reviewing financial information of the Group; (ii)
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system and internal
control procedures; (iii) monitoring of the relationship between the
Group and its external auditors and (iv) developing and reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance with legal and
regulatory requirements and requirements under the Listing Rules.

Subsequent to the end of the Relevant Period and up to the
date of this annual report, meetings of the Audit Committee
were held on 20 January, 5 March and 23 March 2015 to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of auditor,
to approve the engagement letter of the auditor, and review the
Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014 for submission to the Board for approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Audit Committee has been appointed by the Board to
perform the corporate governance function. Subsequent to the
end of the Relevant Period, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of the Directors and the
senior management and the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established on 13
November 2014, with specific written terms of reference. The
Risk Management Committee comprises a total of four members,
being one Executive Director, namely, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chan
Kim Fai (Chairman), Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai
Ming. Accordingly, a majority of the members are Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the risk management committee
include reviewing the Company’s enterprise risk management
framework, and the guidelines, policies and procedures for risk
assessment and risk management and reviewing the effectiveness
of the risk management function.

Subsequent to the end of the Relevant Period and up to the
date of this annual report, a meeting of the Risk Management
Committee was held on 23 March 2015 to review internal control
of the Group.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 13 November
2014, with specific written terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The Nomination Committee comprises a total of
five members, being two Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yuen
Man Ying (Chairman) and Ms. Lee Po Fun, and three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Kim Fai, Mr. Tang
Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming. Accordingly, a majority

of the members are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the nomination committee include
making recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill
vacancies on the Board.

Subsequent to the end of the Relevant Period and up to the date
of this annual report, a meeting of the Nomination Committee was
held on 23 March 2015 to review the structure, size, composition
and diversity of the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 13 November
2014, with specific written terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises a total of
five members, being two Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yuen
Man Ying and Ms. Lee Po Fun, and three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Kim Fai, Mr. Tang Koon
Hung Eric (Chairman) and Ms. Wong Lai Ming. Accordingly, a

majority of the members are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the remuneration committee
include, among others, (i) making recommendations to the Board
on the policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a set of
formal and transparent procedures for developing policies on
such remuneration; (i) reviewing and approving the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives; and (iiij making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of Executive Directors and
members of senior management.
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Subsequent to the end of the Relevant Period and up to the date
of this annual report, a meeting of the Remuneration Committee
was held on 23 March 2015 to review the remuneration package
of the individual Executive Directors and senior management for
submission to the Board for approval.

REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
annual remuneration of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2014 are as follows:

AN

Number of

N8 B Remuneration band individuals
£ 21,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 6
1,000,001/87C£2,000,0007% 7T HK$1,000,001 to 2,000,000 2
2,000,001 7T 23,000,000 7T HK$2,000,001 to 3,000,000 1
9
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Details of the remuneration of each director for the year ended
31 December 2014 are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has established a board diversity policy. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. Diversity of Board
members can be achieved through consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All the Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Each of Evergloss, Likang, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok
Chuen, Kwok Lai, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun has
provided annual confirmations in respect of the compliance with
non-competition undertakings (the “Undertakings”) given by them
in favour of the Company pursuant to a deed of non-competition
undertakings dated 13 November 2014.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
compliance by each of Evergloss, Likang, Mr. Yuen Man Ying,
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen, Kwok Lai, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms.
Lee Po Fun with the Undertakings during the Relevant Period.
The Independent Non-executive Directors have confirmed that, as
far as they can ascertain, there is no breach by any of Evergloss,
Likang, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen, Kwok Lai,
Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun of the Undertakings
given by them.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the remunerations paid
or payable to the external auditors in respect of its audit services
and non-audit services provided to the Group were approximately
HK$0.9 million and HK$3.1 million, respectively. The amount for
non-audit services comprised mainly the reporting accountant’s
work in connection with the IPO.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014. The Directors are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. The statement of the independent auditor of
the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 67 to 68.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal
controls of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Board is committed to implementing an effective and sound
internal controls system to safeguard the interests of shareholders
and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated to the
management the implementation of the system of internal controls
and the review of all relevant financial, operational, compliance
controls and risk management function within an established
framework.

During the year under review, the Company engaged an external
independent professional consultant to review the effectiveness
of certain of the Group’s system of internal controls. Relevant
applicable recommendations made by the consultant during the
financial year have already been implemented in stages by the
Group to further enhance its internal control policies, procedures
and practices.

As a result of the above review, the Board confirms that the
Group’s internal control systems are adequate and effective and
have complied with the CG Code provisions on internal control
throughout the year and up to the date of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year under review, the company secretary has taken
the relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communications between the shareholders and the Board. An
AGM of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place
as may be determined by the Board.
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SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING (“EGM”)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, EGM shall be convened
on the requisition of one or more shareholders of the Company
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the company secretary at the head
office of the Company in Hong Kong, which is presently situated
at 15/F, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition and signed by the requisitionist(s). The request will be
verified with the Company’s Hong Kong Share Registrar in Hong
Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Board will convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice
in accordance with the statutory requirements to all the registered
shareholders. On the contrary, if the request has been verified
not in order, the shareholders will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as requested. If within
21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the company secretary at the Company’s head office
in Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
BY SHAREHOLDERS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles
for including a resolution at an EGM. The requirements and
procedures are set out above in the paragraph headed
“Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting”.
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EEXHHNEXE SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

RATIR2014F11 B13E AT RENHAEZEZ  On 13 November 2014, the Company has adopted an amended
BRAMEMEET A FBEER  E2 P FEA AT and restated memorandum and articles of association with effect
LBl o B F XTI EE AN - B 22014127  from the Listing Date which had been uploaded to the websites
B1AIEE  ARFINERYHLESKEH o of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Save as disclosed
above, there had been no significant changes in the constitutional
documents of the Company during the year ended 31 December

2014.
AERDMm By order of the Board
FEFHNTEF Yuen Man Ying
R Chairman and Executive Director
201593 H23H 23 March 2015

060 RRPEZERBMR AT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
|



EREE

GOVERNANCE REPORT

EELENEIREEZHE

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

BF

RXHERE 6358 RAKEAEIMA - R20145F7H
UEBZERARRERRATES - REER/AR
ARAZEENEIRLAFHEESHNRE - RELER
1987 MARKE - REETDARBEIRITHEERA
A ([RBE] ) NEFRLE MR - RBRERITE
(BAR) BR2A ([RBREBAR] ) ~ RBRBERTHE
(ORPY) BRAR ([RRERF] ) - REIRTHEER
~E ([T ) - RBEEEKREARAR (TR
BBEERE])  RBREZER ( BAR) ARAR ([ RREE
BBEADRRBEEZER (M) BRAR(RREE
MBS - REESEEEHEENRER « fILAXR
MR B TR - HERATS - BB MIEIIE
BIARKEBHE  REENIKBEITERBAIFEE
MBS - REERARFANITETFTES LKL
18 e

BEZEE - 575 0 N2014F7 A24BER T AR AT
WITES - BAEPIBTEMALREE - WAL A
FmE - FORBEARN - SUREDRPT - BERITH - R
HER  RREERAAREREDMNNESRASEE
BN BEEEEASENEE QAHER - A%
R - FEERRERBPIMNBAR o BEERIK
PTERABS0F LT MR -

REBIEE - 6058 - 201457 A24BEZERARA
HITEE - REARARANAREELZSEKE - R
FEERI98BF MAREE - RELTARBIE - b
BRAR - REERM - BEKTH RREERE R
BEREARNRRBEDMNNES - REEAEERARH
BENZRFRT - ATREE - BEPRG - @ RTBE
H o REANRIKETERGRI0FEE MBNMER -

DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen, Man Ying (R X %), aged 63, is the founder of the Group
and was appointed as the Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company on 24 July 2014. Mr. Yuen is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Yuen joined the Group in 1987.
Mr. Yuen serves as the managing director of EGL Tours Company
Limited (“EGL Tours”) and as a director of EGL Tours, EGL Tours
(Japan) Company Limited (“EGL Japan”), EGL Tours (Macau)
Company Limited (“EGL Macau”), i-Evertravel Company Limited
(“i-Evertravel”), EGL Management Group Company Limited (“EGL
Management”), EGL Holdings (Nippon) Limited (“EGL Nippon”) and
EGL Holdings (Asia) Limited (“EGL Asia”). He is responsible for major
decision making, itinerary planning for tours to Japan, promoting
the Japanese market, supervising and training tour escorts and
planning air charter of the Group. Mr. Yuen has over 30 years of
extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism industry. Mr.
Yuen is the spouse of Ms. Lee Po Fun, an Executive Director of the
Company.

Mr. Huen, Kwok Chuen (f5El%), aged 57, was appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company on 24 July 2014. Mr.
Huen joined the Group in 1987. Mr. Huen also serves as a
director of EGL Tours, EGL Japan, EGL Macau, i-Evertravel, EGL
Management, EGL Nippon and EGL Asia and the spokesman of
the Group. He is responsible for overseeing development, public
relations, inbound tours services, specialised gourmet tours and
the Macau subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Huen has over 30 years
of extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism industry.

Mr. Leung, Shing Chiu (%), aged 60, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 24 July 2014. Mr. Leung is
a member of the Risk Management Committee of the Company.
Mr. Leung joined the Group in 1988. Mr. Leung also serves as
a director of EGL Tours, EGL Japan, EGL Macau, i-Evertravel,
EGL Management, EGL Nippon and EGL Asia. He is responsible
for managing the receiving services for outbound tours in Japan,
frontline sales, customer services, accounting and administration
matters of the Group. Mr. Leung has over 30 years of extensive
knowledge and experience in the tourism industry.
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Ms. Lee, Po Fun (Z=E75), aged 56, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 24 July 2014. Ms. Lee is a member of
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Ms. Lee joined the Group in 1987. Ms. Lee also serves
as a director of EGL Tours, EGL Japan, EGL Macau, i-Evertravel,
EGL Management, EGL Nippon and EGL Asia. She is responsible
for overseeing the information technology department, human
resources development, outbound tour services and the overall
operations of the Group. Ms. Lee has over 30 years of extensive
knowledge and experience in the tourism industry. Ms. Lee is the
spouse of Mr. Yuen Man Ying, the Chairman and an Executive
Director of the Company.

Mr. Chan, Kim Fai (BRf&#), aged 56, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 13 November
2014. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. He is
responsible for overseeing the management of the Group
independently. He is currently an independent non-executive director
of Magnificent Estates Limited, Shun Ho Resources Holdings Limited
and Shun Ho Technology Holdings Limited (all these three companies
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange). He has also
served as the sole proprietor of lvan Chan & Co, CPA since 2001.
Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and CPA Australia.

Mr. Tang, Koon Hung Eric (B3 1), aged 69, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 13
November 2014. He is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Risk Management Committee of the Company. He is responsible
for overseeing the management of the Group independently. He is
currently an independent non-executive director of ASM Pacific
Technology Ltd (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange). Mr. Tang was qualified as a Chartered Accountant in
Canada and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

Ms. Wong, Lai Ming (EZ&#), aged 55, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 13 November
2014. She is a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk Management
Committee of the Company. She is responsible for overseeing the
management of the Group independently. Ms. Wong has over 20
years of experience in the legal industry. She is currently Of Counsel
of King & Wood Mallesons, Beijing office. Ms. Wong is a practising
lawyer in China and is a non-practising solicitor in Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheang, Chuen Hon (#§7%£), aged 50, was appointed as the
financial controller of the Group on 1 April 2004. He is responsible
for supervision and management of the Group’s financial issues.
Mr. Cheang joined the Group in June 2001 as a finance manager
before being promoted as the financial controller of EGL Tours in
April 2004.

Mr. Cheang has over 25 years of extensive accounting and
financial experience, in which 10 years in another public listed
company (whose shares are listed in the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange), with latest position as accounting manager.

Mr. Cheang graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor degree in social sciences in November 1988 and later
obtained a master degree of science in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2001. Mr. Cheang
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a Certified Finance and Treasury
Professional of the Finance and Treasury Association Limited.

Ms. Tsui, Kit Lai Anita (ZEE), aged 50, was appointed as the
general manager of FIT business and marketing of the Group on
1 June 2011. She is responsible for managing the development
and sale of FIT products and formulating strategies for overall
marketing, planning and public relations of travel products of the
Group. Ms. Tsui first joined the Group in June 2000 and worked
as the product manager and the business development manager
(airlines & hotels) (previously known as business manager before
re-titling) till December 2005. Later in September 2008, she re-
joined the Group as an assistant to Executive Director before
becoming the general manager overseeing the operations of
the FIT & wholesale department and the marketing and public
relations department of EGL Tours in June 2011.

Ms. Tsui has over 25 years of extensive working experience in the
tourism industry.

Ms. Tsui was conferred with a bachelor’s degree in business
administration by the University of Management & Technology
in the United States through long distance learning in December
2007.
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Ms. Chu, Kwan Yiu (&), aged 46, was appointed as the
assistant general manager of the operations (China & Asia)
department of the Group on 1 June 2011. She is responsible
for overseeing development of package tours in south-east Asia.
Ms. Chu joined the Group in June 1998 and worked as the
operation manager of EGL Tours (formerly known as Evergloss
Tours Company Limited) till February 2001. She joined the Group
again in July 2001 as an operation manager before serving as
the assistant general manager of the operations (China and Asia)
department of EGL Tours in June 2011.

Ms. Chu has over 17 years of extensive experience in tourism
industry.

Ms. Kwok, Yin King (Z8#EER), aged 43, was appointed as the assistant
general manager of the branch sales department of the Group
on 1 June 2011. She is responsible for overseeing frontline sales
of the branches and call centre in Hong Kong, managing escort
guides and providing training to them. Ms. Kwok joined the Group
in March 1994 as an assistant manager before serving as the
assistant general manager of the branch sales department of EGL
Tours.

Ms. Kwok has over 25 years of extensive experience in tourism
industry. Ms. Kwok completed her secondary education at Delia
Memorial School in May 1989.

Ms. Kwok is a sister-in-law of Ms. Lee, an Executive Director of
the Company.

Ms. long, Ut long (§ B %), aged 59, was appointed as the general
manager of the Macau subsidiary of the Group on 17 September
2007. She is responsible for overseeing inbound, outbound and
group tours, and managing the design, sales and operations of
FIT products of the Macau subsidiary. Ms. long joined the Group
in September 2007 and has been the general manager of the
Macau subsidiary since then.

Ms. long has over 25 years of management experience in tourism
industry. Ms. long completed her secondary education at Sacred
Heart College, Macau in July 1976.

From November 2011 to November 2014, Ms. long served as the
vice president of Travel Industry Council of Macau.
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Ms. Yuen, Ho Yee (& 3 [B), aged 26, was appointed as the
assistant to Executive Director of the Group on 23 November
2011. She is responsible for formulating strategies for marketing,
overall operations, future development (such as e-business
platform) and themed package tours (such as overseas marathon,
cycling and overseas wedding and photo shooting package tour)
of the Group. Ms. Yuen joined the Group in November 2011 and
has been the manager of the products development department
of EGL Tours since then.

Ms. Yuen graduated from the University of Nottingham, United
Kingdom with a bachelor of arts degree in management studies in
July 2010.

Ms. Yuen is the daughter of Mr. Yuen and Ms. Lee, Executive
Directors of the Company.

Mr. Wong, Chi Kit (EE£f), aged 64, was appointed as the senior
manager of the management office of the Group on 1 October
2010. He is responsible for formulating of strategic direction
and planning of charter flights. Mr. Wong joined the Group in
September 1999 as a senior marketing manager before retiring as
an assistant general manager in September 2010. Mr. Wong has
over 32 years of extensive experience in the aircraft and travel
agency industry. He is a member of TIC Hong Kong’s outbound
committee for the year 2013/2014.

Mr. Wong graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
diploma in management in June 1994.
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Ms. Tang, Suk Wah Flora (88)f%), aged 40, was appointed as
the senior manager of the human resources development
department of the Group on 1 April 2014. Ms. Tang joined
the Group in July 2008 as a manager of the human resources
development and has been the senior manager of the human
resources development since April 2014. She is responsible for
managing the human resources functions of the Group.

Ms. Tang has over 18 years of experience in human resources
management and development.

Ms. Tang received a bachelor of arts degree in public and social
administration from the City University of Hong Kong in December
1996, a diploma in human resources management from the
University of Hong Kong in August 2000 and a bachelor of law in
Chinese Law from the Tsinghua University, Beijing through long
distance learning in January 2006. Ms. Tang is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Management.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Cheuk Yee, Kathy (ZE=1%), aged 53, was appointed
as the company secretary of the Company on 28 August 2014.
She is responsible for the company secretarial matters of the
Group. Ms. Wong has been the company secretary of EGL Tours
since September 2006, being responsible for its general company
secretarial affairs. Ms. Wong is the sole proprietor of Kathy Wong
& Co., Certified Public Accountants and has over 30 years of
experience in the accounting, audit and tax industry.

Ms. Wong is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in Hong
Kong and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
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111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY
LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of EGL
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 69 to 140, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the agreed terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tsui Ka Che, Norman

Practising Certificate number PO5057

Hong Kong, 23 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HZ=2014F12 H31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
itz TAET THBT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
&= Revenue 7 1,685,245 1,647,173
SHERAN Cost of Sales (1,344,282) (1,294,018)
EZ Gross profit 340,963 353,155
Hapr A R Uezs /(B8 ) B4 Other income and gains/(losses), net 7 6,274 (2,605)
TESBTABEELARER Net realised and unrealised (loss)/gain
(B1#8) W% on derivative financial instruments (485) 2,146
HERX Selling expenses (91,434) (85,397)
THAX Administrative expenses (165,143) (144,878)
T Profit from operation 90,175 122,421
BT RRAR Finance cost 8 = (1,324)
BRFTS AT E R Profit before income tax 9 90,175 121,097
FTiERiH> Income tax expense 10 (15,668) (18,309)
FERA Profit for the year 74,507 102,788
RARHEE AELR Total comprehensive income attributable
O to owners of the Company 74,507 102,788
AATEEAEEERINERER Earnings per share for profit attributable
to owners of the Company
—EARREECEN) - Basic and diluted (HK cents) 12 18.20 25.70

FERQTEE AEEREEHNGE M EREKNE  Details of the dividends attributable to owners of the Company
13- for the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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7201412 A31H As at 31 December 2014

2014 2013
B et F#Ex FETT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
EERAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current assets
ME - R NEE Property, plant and equipment 16 9,205 7,751
TR HER K Prepaid lease payments 17 4,645 6,317
EER IR E B Deferred tax asset 19 766 605
14,616 14,673
RENVEE Current assets
F& Inventories 20 3,622 5,256
2 5 IR Trade receivables 21 1,485 2,493
AR FEER R Prepaid lease payments 17 1,672 1,618
& - AR R E A EUER Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 22 104,092 107,501
BRAREES ABRT Financial assets at fair value through
TRVEE profit or loss 23 - 701
FEUS BB A AIBR K Amounts due from related companies 24 2,503 5,444
JERTR Tax recoverable 163 _
IR TFHR Pledged bank deposits 25 22,039 22,301
HEeRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 25 324,378 330,050
459,954 475,384
mENEE Current liabilities
Z 5 EN R Trade payables 26 53,686 47,841
JEETFE C EWGET 2 Accruals, deposits received and
R H At AT BR other payables 27 184,370 205,656
BRAR BB ABRRN Financial liabilities at fair value through
eHAE profit or loss 23 170 -
THIER S Provision for taxation 2,345 14,097
240,571 267,594
REBEEFE Net current assets 219,383 207,790
EEFE Net assets 233,999 222,463
ERR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
[N Share capital 28 50,245 3,315
Bt Reserves 29 183,754 219,148
R EEE Total equity 233,999 222,463
REEFE On behalf of the Board of Directors
RN BEE
Yuen Man Ying Huen Kwok Chuen
= 2=
Director Director

O7O RBEERARALT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Statement of Financial Position
2014F12 A31H As at 31 December 2014

2014
Bt FH&T
Notes HK$’000
EERERE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FRBEE Non-current assets
B R RIERE Investments in subsidiaries 18(a) 61,198
REVEE Current assets
T4 AR EEMENWEE  Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 22 314
JE BT /B A B BR 5K Amount due from a subsidiary 18(b) 114,728
ReMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 25 4,010
119,052
=N Current liabilities
FE T3R8 K E b FE A5 BR Accruals and other payables 27 5,546
FERTHT B A RIBR X Amount due to a subsidiary 18(b) 382
5,928
REEEFE Net current assets 113,124
EEFE Net assets 174,322
BERR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
P Share capital 28 50,245
EaE Reserves 29 124,077
Rz Total equity 174,322
REREZS On behalf of the Board of Directors
RN BEE
Yuen Man Ying Huen Kwok Chuen
= =
Director Director
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Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2014%F12 A31H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

RA  ROEE SHRfE  LAERE  NERE  REEAN A5t
Foreign
Share Share Merger  Statutory exchange  Retained
capital  premium* reserve* reserve* reserve*  earnings* Total
THET THET THET THET THET THET THET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
R2013F1A1H At 1 January 2013 Se - - 872 (3) 160,244 164,428
EEENREENALE  Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - - 102,788 102,788
REIRR B (f513) Interim dividends (note 13) = = = = = (44,758) (44,759
R2013E12A318 K At 31 December 2013
201451A1H and 1 January 2014 3,315 - - 872 3 218,279 222,463
EEHEN R EERAZLZE  Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - - 74,507 74,507
R ER S (faF13) Interim dividends (note 13) - - - - - (197,353)  (197,353)
EEEAES(H528(2)) Adsing from group
reorganisation (note 28(a)) (3,315) - 331l - - - -
SESAREIRG Issue of shares upon group
(Hizt28(b)) reorganisation (note 28(b)) 1 61,197 (61,198) = = = =
BAMEREITRG Issue of shares upon
(Hizt28(c)) capitalisation (note 28(c)) 39,999 (39,999) = = = = =
ERBERETRND Issue of shares upon global
(Hizt28(d)) offering (note 28(d)) 10,000 129,000 = = = - 139,000
TRRRAL R R TR D Issue of shares upon over-
(Hizt28(¢e)) allotment (note 28(e)) 245 3,161 = = = = 3,406
B ETRE Share issuance expenses - (8,024) - - - - (8,024)
46,930 145,335 (57,883 - - (197,353) (62,971)
20145124318 At 31 December 2014 50,245 145,335 (57,883) 872 3) 95,433 233,999
* ZEERBEASEMBGIRARPE[ FiE] - * The total of these accounts represents “Reserves” in the

072 RBEERAR-LT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

consolidated statement of financial position.



FealRTRER

B

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HZ=2014F12 H31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
sz TR THET
RETHELENHESRE Cash flows from operating activities
BRPT{5A AT Al Profit before income tax 90,175 121,097
ke Adjustments for:
FIEWBA Interest income (1,214) (1,305)
BN REN T Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 1,618 2,097
BATERAR Finance cost - 1,324
M - BERSENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,733 3,275
HEYE -« BEREENEEFE  Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, net 20 2
FLEL B AR B RS Ry R Bad debts directly written off in respect
of other receivables 1 18
fEERIADRBEE Change in fair value on derivative
financial instruments, net 891 (730)
LB E BRI RS E T Operating profit before working capital changes 95,224 125,778
FERD,/(2n) Decrease/(Increase) in inventories 1,634 (2,184)
2B SRR Decrease in trade receivables 1,008 760
e BRSREMELER Decrease/(Increase) in deposits, prepayments
T /() and other receivables 3,571 (30,511)
FEU B E A B BRTUR D Decrease in amounts due from related companies 2,941 100
O AL Increase in trade payables 5,845 4,892
JEsTRE  EWET & R EAM (Decrease)/Increase in accruals, deposits
FERBECHA), /12N received and other payables (21,286) 72,568
EBEANRS Cash generated from operations 88,937 171,403
ERAS Interest paid - (1,324)
BRFEE Income tax paid (27,744) (8,369)
R T EEN TS TR Net cash generated from operating activities 61,193 161,710
RETHEENHESRE Cash flows from investing activities
BEWE  BENIRE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (5,207) (4,751)
ERETEZRD /() Decrease/(Increase) in pledged bank deposits 262 (12,196)
BT IR R Decrease in loan receivables - 708
BUFIE Interest received 1,051 1,305
KEZE T E % FE Net cash used in investing activities (3,894) (14,934)
METHELENRESRE Cash flows from financing activities
BT Dividends paid (197,353) (44,753)
BITERRATEFIA Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 134,382 =
BENRERER0E Proceeds from loan from a related company - 87,800
BRAEARIER Repayment of loan from a related company - (87,800)
BE R FTARE % F 5 Net cash used in financing activities (62,971) (44,753)
BEeRBRLZEMORL) /#ENFEE  Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents (5,672) 102,023
FNEERBELEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 330,050 228,027
ERRAENREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 25 324,378 330,050
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2014%F12 A31H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2014
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1.

GENERAL

EGL Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 24 July 2014 as
an exempted company with limited liability. The address
of its registered office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO
Box 1350, Grand Cayman, KYI-1108, Cayman lIslands. Its
principal place of business is located at 15/F, EGL Tower,
83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 28 November 2014.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 18(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company
is Evergloss Management Group Company Limited
(“Evergloss”), incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014 were approved by the board of directors on
23 March 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZ=2014F12 H31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

2. BT BEITERE AL 2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (the “HKFRSs”)
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(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective

1 January 2014

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) have
applied for the first time the following new or revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), which are relevant
to and effective for the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual year beginning on 1 January
2014.

Amendments to Offsetting Financial Assets

HKAS 32 and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to Recoverable Amount
HKAS 36 Disclosures for

Non-Financial Assets

Except as explained below, the adoption of these
amendments has no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 32 — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by
adding appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies
when an entity “currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off” and when a gross settlement mechanism
is considered equivalent to net settlement. The
amendments are applied retrospectively.

Amendments to HKAS 36 — Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments limit the requirements to disclose
the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating
unit (“CGU”) to those periods in which an impairment
loss has been recognised or reversed, and expand the
disclosures where the recoverable amount of impaired
assets or CGUs has been determined based on fair
value less costs of disposal. The amendments are
applied retrospectively.

The adoption of these amendments has no material
impact to these financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle?
Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle!
Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle®
Financial Instruments®

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers*
Disclosure Initiative®

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions

occurring, on or after 1 July 2014

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2016

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2017

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2018
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(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows (the business model
test) and that have contractual terms that give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding (the
contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that
meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”) if the objective of the entity’s
business model is both to hold and collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets.
Entities may make an irrevocable election at initial
recognition to measure equity instruments that are not
held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity
instruments are measured at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”).

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and
new general hedge accounting requirements to allow
entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS
39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.
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(b) New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
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but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: ldentify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance

obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new or revised HKFRSs upon
initial application but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new or revised HKFRSs would have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(c) New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
provisions relating to the preparation of
financial statements

The provisions of the new Companies Ordinance,
Cap. 622, in relation to the preparation of financial
statements will apply to the Company in its first
financial year beginning on or after 3 March 2014 (i.e.
the financial year ending 31 December 2015).

The directors consider that there will be no impact on
the Group’s financial position or performance, however
the new Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622, would have
impacts on the presentation and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The Statement of
Financial Position of the Company will be presented
in the notes rather than a separate statement and the
related notes need not be included, while generally the
statutory disclosures will be simplified.

GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

Through a reorganisation to rationalise the structure of the
Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares
(the “Group Reorganisation”), the Company has become
the holding company of its subsidiaries now comprising
the Group since 13 November 2014. Details of the Group
Reorganisation are fully explained in the prospectus of the
Company dated 18 November 2014.
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3.

GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (Continued)

Immediately prior to and after the Group Reorganisation,
the business (the “Listed Business”) is carried by the
companies now comprising the Group (the “Operating
Companies”). Pursuant to the Group Reorganisation, the
Operating Companies together with the Listed Business
were transferred to and held by the Company through EGL
Management Group Company Limited (“EGL Management”).
The Company has not been involved in any other business
prior to the Group Reorganisation and does not meet
the definition of a business. The Group Reorganisation
was merely a reorganisation of the Listed Business with
no change in management of such business and the
ultimate owners of the Listed Business remain the same.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared using the principles of merger accounting as if the
current group structure had been in existence throughout
the current year and prior year.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows of the Group for the current year and prior year have
been prepared to present the results, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company and its subsidiaries as if the
current group structure had been in existence throughout
the current year and prior year, or since their respective
dates of incorporation, whichever was shorter. The
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2013 have been prepared to present the
assets and liabilities of the Company and its subsidiaries as
if the current group structure had been in existence at that
date.

No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise
any new assets or liabilities as a result of the Group
Reorganisation.

All intra-group transactions and balances have been
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Since the Company was incorporated on 24 July 2014,
there were no comparatives provided on the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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3.

GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (Continued)

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs, which collective terms include all applicable
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA. The financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under historical cost convention, except for derivative
financial instruments which are stated at fair values.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
judgements are used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where consumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@

(o)

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the dates of acquisition or up to the
dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with those used by other members of the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (i) power over the investee, (i) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee, and (iii)
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“‘HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

Transactions entered into by group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
Upon consolidation, income and expense items of
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the year, in which case,
the rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arisen, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
foreign exchange reserve.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated so as
to write off their cost over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line basis, at the rates shown below
per annum. The estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of the reporting period.

Leasehold 30% or over the lease term,

improvements whichever is shorter
Office equipment 20%
Computer equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e

®

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments represent up-front payments
for the rental of tour buses. They are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The amortisation is calculated
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, which
is negotiated and agreed between the Group and a
lessor on an arm'’s length basis from time to time.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.

Where the Group has the right over the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the time pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rent is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9) Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at
FVTPL are initially measured at fair value and all
other financial assets are initially measured at
fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. A regular way purchase
or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset
under a contract whose terms require delivery
of the asset within the time frame established
generally by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned.

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets include financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated upon
initial recognition as at FVTPL. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.

Financial assets may be designated upon
initial recognition as at FVTPL if the following
criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates or
significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment
that would otherwise arise from measuring the
assets or recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis; (i) the assets are part of
a group of financial assets which is managed
and its performance evaluated on a fair value
basis according to a documented management
strategy; or (i) the financial asset contains an
embedded derivative that would need to be
separately recorded.
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(9) Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to
customers (trade debtors), and also incorporate
other types of contractual monetary asset.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of the reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset
is impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset and that event has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

= granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty; and

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss and directly reduces the carrying amount of
financial asset when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
financial asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When any part of financial
asset is determined as uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for the relevant
financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
initially measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised cost are initially measured
at fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid contract
may be designated as a financial liability at
FVTPL, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows
or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon
initial recognition as at FVTPL if the following
criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates or
significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment
that would otherwise arise from measuring the
liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis; (ii) the liabilities are part of
a group of financial liabilities which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or (i) the financial liability
contains an embedded derivative that would
need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade payables, accruals and other payables and
amount due to a subsidiary are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Q)

(h)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iv)  Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

(v)  Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.



AR e B RSmER MT AE

B

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZ=2014F12 H31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

4,

4. FEEFHBR#E)

() Wz ER
Wet B EHEERm - RERFERERANEE
BEMEENEMMRERLTIHEODA
BE ERKENDSRERARKEBR
ABEWR AT SEaTE - WanfEsRan T ¢

REHIRITE WA R AN R B HARFEE - 77
T ARERR

TRt E MR R ARTS - BRI R IHE#
2 BAEEBEREEEENBRARKTEEE
ARIERIRH RIS SUFRRE L T IARER
HAKERNE TR (BEMARRARHEE)
FREEA BMAEMARNEARR KL

BREBEEPRER  BRAKE—RAKM
EREmRNEPREFPERRPFIZENRE R
2B o

B AR KB IRA I R

) ST P B B N SRR R By ] L ) 2 A R

WER e B0 RN TR AR B AR IR R FE 1555
) 1% K HEE TE B W B % 5 00 4B ( BV AR B B
1710 B MTBRT R ) R AWA -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the sales of
goods, rendering of services and the use by others
of the Group’s assets yielding interest, net of rebates
and discounts. Provided it is probable that economic
benefits will flow to the Group and revenue can be
measured reliably. Revenue is recognised as follows:

Income from provision of package tours is recognised
when the services are rendered by the Group.

Income from provision of other travel related services,
management services and sales of air tickets, hotel
accommodation and hotel packages is recognised
when the services are rendered by the Group as
an agent on a net basis. Where the Group acts as
a principal in certain transactions, including sales
of tickets and merchandise, revenue is recognised
upon transfer of the significant risks and rewards of
ownership to the customer. This is usually taken as the
time when the tickets and merchandise are delivered
and the customer has accepted the tickets and
merchandise.

Commission income is recognised when the services
are rendered by the Group.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Rebate received from a supplier is recognised as
income when the Group’s entitlements to the rebates
are established in accordance with the terms of the
subscriber agreement, i.e. when the booking of the
corresponding travel item is confirmed.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Accounting for income tax

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate
to the expected manner in which the carrying amount
of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

k)

()

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand as well as short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. Income earned on
temporary investments of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when the
employees render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when
the services are rendered by the employees.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(0)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;
prepaid lease payments; and
investments in subsidiaries

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the
extent that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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(p) Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

()  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(vy  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

Q)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit
or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the employee share option reserve within
equity. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into
account by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of the reporting period
so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised
over the vesting period is based on the number of
options that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions
are factored into the fair value of the options granted.
As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied,
a charge is made irrespective of whether the market
vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are
modified before they vest, the increase in the fair value
of the options, measured immediately before and after
the modification, is also recognised in profit or loss
over the remaining vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons
other than employees and others providing similar
services, the fair value of goods or services received is
recognised in profit or loss unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets. A corresponding
increase in equity is recognised. For cash-settled share
based payments, a liability is recognised at the fair
value of the goods or services received.
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5.

B F R FIER

M RHFEZFEFEAENBELRIEBE
= BREMBBELTRABSAENE REKEMF
HYTRE -

AEBEREIE LA RAE - ISR
REFZEHRIBBEERRSE B TR
RT—BEFRFEE/ BREREARAREHEE
HEERMEFLEANFBENGET R

() IrEREH
& B 5 B R 5 M 52 4(d) Ko a(e) P it & 5 IR
REWE - BERRBETIEAREEN
MENFETHEE - At ERFHRRE
EHAREERNZ T EERERPEERK
BN SR AR AR - R|RERKR - &1
B hat Al A F AE TR -

(i) FEWERRE
BB T T FE MR RE - b Et I ER
B REBAGERSRBEMRIEL - 7
EWEMK - ERBYHEURREETER
AT d ©

(ii) BRI R RAEAEF R (45t
ARG B 7R 1 B T R R & R AR R B TR
NEEELEZHE - MERREERER
B IR - ZFEREFEFELLE
B RN SN R RE -

i) RAIEEETE
AEBPMBHERAEZHEERABRAUR
REEFE  RFARAEBEREE -

AEESREERAENAABENESA
ENATmSA RSB LHE - AREER
RBEFENSBREABERLFAERS
BN BEREEDRTESER(AAEE
F1):

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year/period are discussed below:

()  Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment
and amortises prepaid lease payments in accordance
with the accounting policies stated in notes 4(d) and
4(e) respectively. The estimated useful lives reflect the
directors’ estimates of the periods that the Group intends
to derive future economic benefits from the use of these
assets. The management reassesses the estimated
useful lives at the end of the reporting period.

(i) Impairment of receivables

The management assesses impairment of receivables
on a regular basis. This estimate is based on the credit
history of the customers and debtors and current market
conditions. The management reassesses the impairment
of receivables at the end of the reporting period.

(i) Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

Significant judgements are required in determining
the amount of the provision for tax and the timing
of payment of the related tax. Where the final tax
outcomes are different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods
in which such determination are made.

(iv) Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the
Group’s financial statements require measurement at,
and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities utilises market observable inputs and
data as far as possible. Inputs used in determining fair
value measurements are categorised into different levels
based on how observable the inputs used in the valuation
technique utilised are (the “Fair Value Hierarchy”):

2014% %% AmnualReport 2014 ()97
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5. FESFhE R &) 5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(v) RAEEEE) (iv) Fair value measurement (Continued)
ER1:  MEREEXAEBERERETSRE Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
(REEAE): markets for identical assets or liabilities;

EH2: HEEXBEMS  FHRITH
BENABR(EREX(BINE
%) EE (AERITE) ) M2 H
MIERE + &

E43: HEEHBEMEAERAH
KEMEBEN2B(TAER2
g0 -

BB FRAR BEFRTRBEMERNSRE
EFREHRANIABENEFEEFEN
2% - TRAFHMHYIE B SRR HE A B

ARLDIIER A RESENHE - B2
AN -

SERER &

AEEDREATELERRETHE R - AH
HEREAKEEBHNERDELEMERRZ
MERE IS E R MR A& D&

AEE  AERRERREFLOALEZHEADT
ERARKEIRERIRERBREER - At - R
BEERBVBMELRESR - K20 RE  BE
BRAAKREEF—ELES® - UM E > A
EORERZS o

HRAEB A WagRE EEMRF BHE
BE-XFPRIBEEANEEREI0%HIA L
HHE2IIRMBEUERTETFE DN ES
i

098 RRPEZERBMR AT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
|

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liabilities, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are
not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised
in the period in which they occur.

The Group measures derivative financial instruments at
fair value.

For more detailed information in relation to the fair
value measurement of the item above, please refer to
the applicable note.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has identified its operating segments based on
the regular internal financial information reported to the chief
operating decision makers about allocation of resources to
assess the performance of the Group’s business.

The only component in internal reporting to the chief
operating decision makers is the Group’s travel and travel
related services business during the year. In this regard,
management considers that there is only one operating
segment under the requirements of HKFRS 8 — Operating
Segments and no segment information is presented.

As most revenue of the Group are derived from Hong Kong
and Macau and no transactions with a single customer
amounts to 10 per cent or more of the Group’s revenue, no
segment analysis by geographic location or major customer
is presented.
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7.

WaERE BN RKE (BHR) P8

W MR AR EERE - HIRTENERFEN
EBVARKRE(TBRTESR - @RlRETSE

7.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS/
(LOSSES), NET

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the net invoiced value of package tours and the net

(EEHTERARAIBERTER D RETH
B\ i 7T 48 B E am M AR TS B9 PR 1S 3K
B MEXBAEANSIBERERFINE AR

TRFRR - R

proceeds from free independent travellers (“FIT”) packages,
individual travel elements (together with FIT packages as
“FIT Products”) and certain ancillary travel related products

AR - and services. The amounts of each significant category
of revenue recognised in turnover during the year are as
follows:

AEE
Group
2014 2013
FET FABT
HK$’000 HK$’000

Wz Revenue

RTTE Package tours 1,524,714 1,498,836

BHRTEmHE) FIT Products (note) 75,421 75,725

B IRTTHE A E M AR (M AE) Ancillary travel related products

and services (note) 85,110 72,612
1,685,245 1,647,173

HabW A R s (B518) 548 Other income and gains/(losses), net

SNEE 518 F ’E Exchange loss, net (8,466) (8,780)

BRIR UL A % B B8 WA Handling income and forfeited fees

from customers 2,030 276

IRITERAEUA Interest income on bank deposits 1,214 1,305

BEEBIA Management fee income 15 84

B YAtk fE s B 40 Rebate received from a supplier 5,486 3,883

AL N Rental income 8 32

HIBUA Sundry income 987 595

6,274 (2,605)
20145 &3 AnnualReport 2014 ()99
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7. WERHEMBBARKE (BR)FE 7.

(%)

Hiat AR E B RTTEMME TH B IEIRTTARRE @ R
RIBELENBEHERIEARERRREITEAR
BB E - BmstRFE - ERREKETSER

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS/
(LOSSES), NET (Continued)

Note: The Group’s revenue from FIT Products and certain ancillary
travel related products and services are considered as cash
collected on behalf of principals as an agent, and thus

BTN ¢ recorded on a net basis. The gross proceeds received and
receivable are as follows:
#%E
Group
2014 2013
FHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
2 Ue & & W AR T 15 FX 08 Gross proceeds received and receivable 730,781 733,005
8. MBHHA 8. FINANCE COST
rEE
Group
2014 2013
FET FATT
HK$’000 HK$’000
ST REEA RN A Interest paid to a related company = 1,324

1 OO RRPEZERBMR AT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
|
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9.

B BT 43 %% B it 71

RS BATE MR, (FEA) A TREBFH

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

REE
Group
2014 2013
FiExT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000
1% 2 B 2 B Auditor’s remuneration 940 567
TE - 7 & SRk 5 Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 1,618 2,097
BRERYNEFEERA Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 29,577 17,729
S L A JE L AR LAt [0 o S22 BR Bad debts recovered in respect of other
receivables - (61)
LB B UK BR B BE A BE Y 3B AR Bad debts directly written off in respect of
other receivables 1 18
VI - BB NERETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,733 3,275
ETRAZGIATTHRRASR) Listing expenses (included in
administrative expenses) 18,606 -
HEME  BEKR Loss on disposal of property,
R EIEF R plant and equipment, net 20 2
MATIEENKEHERS ¢ Operating lease rental in respect of:
-~ - Premises 22,373 20,924
YN - Office equipment 2,116 1,510
—IRiEE — Tour buses 36,291 35,497
B T (B IERHTEE14 Staff costs (including directors’
WENESHM): emoluments in note 14):
fﬁéﬁﬁm:’*ﬁ%ﬁu — Salaries and other benefits in kinds 141,994 139,965
RIRGET B — Retirement scheme contributions 5,070 4,955
147,064 144,920
2014% %% AnnualReport2014 1 ()1
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10. FREHHE

775 R 2 MY T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

rEE
Group
2014 2013
FE T FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BIEAR 1 — BB RIEHR Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
—RFEEHIEA — Tax for the year 14,898 16,466
— B FE R — Over-provision in respect of prior year (1,414) (508)
13,484 15,958
BIERSEIE — R RS R i Current tax - Macau Complementary Tax
—RFEHIE — Tax for the year 2,345 1,990
IEFEFLIE (faF19) Deferred tax (note 19)
—RAFEERZEGIA),/ kR — (Credited)/Charged to profit or loss for the year (161) 361
15,668 18,309

ARBRFESB S EMA L MR FEEER KB
RRESEMMAL - RIEFMS S R B XA
EMER HRUERHERELRBERLES
ETERY WERLRASHEN AN KEBRE LR
EHE

AEEEBFESRIIBERESEENH B A A
9 {5 51 78 51 51 %4 K #216.5% (2013 : 16.5%) B Fi
REHHE o

AEER EFERRBPILENMB ARG
JE T4 K| BRI P 1S R TR T9IR9% 2 12% RO T
o

e

1 02 RBEZERERAT EGLHOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
EGL Management was incorporated in the BVI that are tax-
exempted as no business is carried out in the Cayman
Islands and BVI under the laws of the Cayman Islands and
BVI respectively.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2013: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits of subsidiaries operating
in Hong Kong for the year.

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at rates ranging
from 9% to 12% on the estimated assessable profits of a
subsidiary operating in Macau for both years.
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10. BN Z ()

11.

BERBREAENAERAX R
.

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continuead)

& =55 Al ¥ BR 10 Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting

profit at applicable tax rates:

rEE
Group
2014 2013
FET FATT
HK$’000 HK$’000
B P15 Bt A& A Profit before income tax 90,175 121,097
LEBHEIHE16.5%:TEMFIE  Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate
of 16.5% 14,879 19,981
REM A EEEHNHEARZ  Tax effect of different tax rates of a subsidiary
PR R Z B2 operating in other jurisdiction (856) (797)
AT IR B ORISR E Tax effect of non-deductible items 3,824 1,881
BAERDIE B TSR % Tax effect of non-taxable items (1,632) (1,789)
REERTNF, (ERF) BHE M Tax effect of deductible/(taxable) temporary
ERNR G2 differences not recognised 600 (336)
RNERT BB NIE T E Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 267 -
BEFEHEERE Over-provision in prior year (1,414) (508)
B ARERTIAEENE A Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised - (123)
Fifs iR Income tax expense 15,668 18,309
AR BB ANEGGT 11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY
KNANBEE ANELES®MNBERNTEREBLY The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
21,258,000/ 75(2013 : &) » BE&BHALR a8 Company included a loss of the Company of approximately

BTN

HK$21,258,000 (2013: Nil) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

20145 %3 AnnualReport2014 103
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12. SlREF

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

2014 2013
FETT FATT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B Earnings
RNARER AR Profit attributable to owners of
the Company 74,507 102,788
2014 2013
TR T
’000 ‘000
RO EE Number of shares
TmAR e B ET) Weighted average number of
ordinary shares (note) 409,402 400,000

Bzt B 220134512 531 8 LE 4 [E #9400,000,0008% ¥
BRI TS - BIBEEAMEBEITEREME
BITRO BB (FBEHRMIE28(c)) + IRBIHAR A
RFETK R IREE ZRIE R & E20134F12H31H
IFEEEEREZE20149F11 A28H %17 »

#£502,450,0000% I i A% 5+ & L & 22014412
A318 Lk [Z K409,402,0008% & 38 A% hn g F 15
- ROEEEERENREERBERE®RET
#99,402,0000% & 38 A% hn#E F¥9 20 - hn_E At &
Z20134F12 A31 B 1E F E #9400,000,0000% 3 i
% o

H 220145 K2013F12A31B L EEAREE I
EESEBERD  FtSREERA EEREAR
A FIFEE o

1 04 RBEZERKRERAT EGLHOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Note: Weighted average of 400,000,000 ordinary shares for the
year ended 31 December 2013, being the number of shares
in issue immediately after the completion of capitalisation
issue as detailed in note 28(c), deemed to have been issued
throughout the year ended 31 December 2013 and up to 28
November 2014, immediately before the completion of global
offering.

Weighted average of 409,402,000 ordinary shares derived
from 502,450,000 ordinary shares for the year ended 31
December 2014, includes the weighted average of 9,402,000
ordinary shares issued immediately after the completion of
global offering and the over-allotment, in addition to the
aforementioned 400,000,000 ordinary shares for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Diluted earnings per share were the same as the basic
earnings per share as the Group had no dilutive potential
shares during the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2018.
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13. B & 13. DIVIDENDS
Bk BHEIAR - KA T EL =R No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company
B &R BBRERTEAER AT ([ERYE R since its date of incorporation. The dividends proposed by
BRiERTA(BR)BEAT([ERER AN DR EGL Tours Company Limited (“EGL Tours”) and EGL Tours
BEKRARRNTME AR Z AT K T /% M % (Japan) Company Limited (“EGL Japan”) to the shareholders
Bt - before they became subsidiaries of the Company during the

year are summarised as follows:

2014 2013
FiExT FHT

HK$’000 HK$’000

REARR S Interim dividends 197,353 44,753

20145 &% AmualReport2014 105
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14. EEFH M 14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
RIEEE22Z T BN e EAIMTR11578(1) (BB Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 78(1)
TEIREFBABIEOIE161E) IR ENES S of Schedule 11 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Ban T : Cap. 622, which requires compliance with Section 161

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 32, is as
follows:
HFeREAM MiER =R/
e BYRER RRAA BE 3 st
Salaries Discretionary
and other and Retirement
benefits performance scheme
Fee in kinds bonuses contributions Total
(Hizt)
(note)
TR FAT FET FHT THT
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
2014
HITEE Executive Directors
=R Yuen Man Ying
HEZE Huen Kwok Chuen
2k sl Leung Shing Chiu
ZES Lee Po Fun
BUINITEE Independent Non-executive
Directors
5y Chan Kim Fai
B Tang Koon Hung Eric
=BH Wong Lai Ming
2013
HITEE Executive Directors
RXR Yuen Man Ying - 1,753 7,068 84 8,905
mEE Huen Kwok Chuen - 1,392 5,715 68 7,175
2k Leung Shing Chiu = 1,414 5,835 66 7,315
FEHR Lee Po Fun - 1,392 5,710 66 7,168
- 5,951 24,328 284 30,563
Hiat BB RRBIEA TR EARAEBRENKLFHME B Note: The discretionary and performance bonuses are determined
SREMETE ° by reference to the Group' s performance and approved by
the remuneration committee.
2014 K2013F12A31H L FEE - HiEES No directors waived any emoluments during the years ended
WELAIB S - 31 December 2014 and 20183.

1 06 RmEZERAERAE  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
|
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15. THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

15. AEmEHMA L

AEERLERSHFEMALT - 45(2013 :48) K
ARBES > WENMS IR EXHFE14A © &8

T14(2013 : 1B) ATHBE T -

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2013: four) were directors of the Company

whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note

14 above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2013: one)

individual were as follows:

REEH

Group
2014 2013
F#BT T
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Fre LEMEYREF Salaries and other benefits in kinds 837 828
)18 MR IRTEAL Discretionary and performance bonuses 1,422 640
RORET IR Retirement scheme contributions 17 15
2,276 1,483

REHMIEESE A LTHFMBENT

The emoluments of the
the following bands:

highest paid non-director fell within

2014 2013

N AEK

Number of Number of

individual individual

1,000,001/ 7T 22,000,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 - 1
2,000,001 77T 23,000,000/ 7T HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 1 -

BENENTEREEEAENTMMHEERT The emoluments (paid
management) were within the following bands:

or payable to members of senior

2014 2013

AH A

Number(s) Number(s)

of individual of individual

= %=1,000,0007 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 6 6
1,000,001 7C%2,000,00078 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 2 2
2,000,001 7C 238,000,000/ 7T HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 1 -

20145 %% AmualReport2014 1 (7



= AN
AR A

B 75 SRR Y =

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2014512 A31H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

16. MK ~ BB R&R

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

A
Group
BEMEEE BARE B "E GARETHE At
Leasehold Office Computer Motor Furniture
improvements equipment equipment vehicles  and fixtures Total
TAT THL TAL FHT THEL TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
12013%1A1R At 1 January 2013
PES Cost 29,758 11,201 22,640 - 5,042 68,731
2iHNE Accumulated depreciation (28,562) (11,066) (18,081) - (4,745) (62,454)
REFE Net carrying amount 1,196 225 4,559 - 297 6,277
BZ2013512A31A Year ended 31 December 2013
JI:3:5
FARERE Opening net carrying amount 1,196 225 4,559 - 297 6,277
NE Additions 3,141 60 1,320 - 230 4,751
e Disposals @ - - = = @
& Depreciation (1,110) (119) (1,873) - (179) (3,275)
EREEFE Closing net carrying amount 3,225 166 4,006 - 354 7,751
H2013E12A31B R At 31 December 2013 and
M201451A1H at 1 January 2014
PR Cost 30,697 11,351 23,960 - 5,272 71,280
ZitNE Accumulated depreciation (27,472) (11,185) (19,954) - (4,918) (63,529)
REFE Net carrying amount 3,225 166 4,006 - 354 7,751
BZ2014F12731R For the year 31 December 2014
LEE
FREFE Opening net carrying amount
NE Additions
HE Disposals
bk Depreciation
EREEFE Closing net carrying amount
12014512A31H At 31 December 2014
KA Cost
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation
REFE Net carrying amount

1 08 RmEZERAERAE  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
|
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17. FEHEEAFR 17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

AEH
Group
2014 2013
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
F4 At beginning of the year
DE Cost 15,938 15,938
ZETEEE Accumulated amortisation (8,003) (5,906)
BREDFEE Net carrying amount 7,935 10,032
BHE12A31HILLEE Year ended 31 December
FHRRME A Opening net carrying amount 7,935 10,032
B Amortisation (1,618) (2,097)
FARREFE Closing net carrying amount 6,317 7,935
FR At end of the year
DN Cost 15,938 15,938
RETEEE Accumulated amortisation (9,621) (8,008)
IREFE Net carrying amount 6,317 7,935
20145 %3 AnnualReport2014 1 (09
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17. BRABEAR @)

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (Continued)

REE
Group
2014 2013
FH&T Tt
HK$’°000 HK$’000
A I Represented by:
EREEE Non-current assets 4,645 6,317
MEEE Current assets 1,672 1,618
6,317 7,935
18. MM B RIRIH#E & 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(a) RUEBLaImILE (a) Investments in subsidiaries
PIN/NC|
Company
2014
FH&IT
HK$’000
JE LR - TR AE Unlisted shares, at cost 61,198

110 =mEEBRERAT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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18. TP 2 Bl BOHE Z5 (40
(@ REBAAIMKE &)

MR2014F12H8318 * A2 AR THIME A
TEA EEREEER  ZERTEATLA

BRAR - HFEHIINT

B

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

At 31 December 2014, the Company had direct or
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries, all of

which are private companies with limited liability, the

particulars of which are set out as follows:

MR
NEIEE R 2 ERTRBERAK FEfGRRE TEEK
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid Attributable equity
Name of company operations share capital interest Principal activities
=% G
Directly Indirectly
RmiEe RERXES 337,025/ © 100% - KREER
EGL Management BVI 4 #£337,025% 0 Investment holding
337,025 shares totalling
United States dollar
(‘Us$”) 337,025
R B 3,315,000 @Ak - - 100% RERTE - BRTERK
EGL Tours Hong Kong A 43,315,000/ 7T &5 B 14 b1 T AR B = o e AR 7S
3,315,000 ordinary shares Provision of package tours, FIT
totalling HK$3,315,000 Products and ancillary travel
related products and services
REEAR B 221 R EEAK - - 100% R4t B AR HRIRITE -
EGL Japan Hong Kong & H2217 7T B B1TEm RE B RS T
221 ordinary shares R RAE i S AR 7%
totalling HK$221 Provision of outbound package
tours, FIT Products and
ancillary travel related products
and services in Japan
BERKITHAERRAR  HE 550,0008% & AR - - 100% HERE
(RRREIRTTAL) Hong Kong A 550,000/ 7T Sales of air tickets
i-Evertravel Company 550,000 ordinary shares
Limited (i-Evertravel) totalling HK$550,000
RRBEmRTHORP) =M 1,800,0002FI 7T - 100% RURITE - BRTERNAR
BRAA] Macau Macau Pataca (“MOP”) & B M AR T AR 2 i S AR 7S
(IRELRM ) 1,800,000 Provision of package tours, FIT

EGL Tours (Macau)
Company Limited
(“EGL Macau”)

Products and ancillary travel
related products and services

20145 F 3K Annual Report 2014
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18. MMBARRIE (2

(b) JEH S (FENS)HIE 2 FIRHC

U (FERMBARRRAEER 28
RIREREE -

19. EEHREEE

RAFERBEFERANELEHRREERES

18.

19.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

DEFERRED TAX ASSET

Details of the deferred tax asset recognised and movements

BRI during the current and prior years are as follows:
REE
Group
2014 2013
FHET T
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH] At beginning of the year 605 966
Rzt A (308 (HfaE10) Credited/(Charged) to profit or loss (note 10) 161 (361)
FR At end of the year 766 605

RI|EHAR  NEEEGAEERNHIBBED
/53,252,000 75 (2013 : 1,635,000/ 7T ) ° R
REHEFRAAITEA - M B A R4S 8 RERE
HBEPAERASELERIBEE o Al HUR A R
ZRAR] ER HAAGEE o

The Group has estimated unrecognised tax losses of
approximately HK$3,252,000 (2013: HK$1,635,000) at the
end of the reporting period. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of these unrecognised tax losses
carried forward by a subsidiary due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The deductible temporary differences
can be carried forward indefinitely.

20. & 20. INVENTORIES
REEE
Group
2014 2013
FHExT TETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Al E AR G Merchandise for sales 3,622 5,256

1 1 2 RBEERAR-LT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
|
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21. B ZEWER 21. TRADE RECEIVABLES

AEH

Group
2014 2013
FET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
H 5 WA Trade receivables 1,485 2,493
RIBZHZAH  RHREHR - RAECESER The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are not
BREVEREC AT T - impaired as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

invoice dates, is as follows:

rEE

Group
2014 2013
TFEIT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
0 - 90X 0 - 90 days 1,461 2,355
91 - 180K 91 - 180 days 24 138
1,485 2,493

201453 AnnualReport2014 113
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21. EZEWER®) 21.

AEERRTEIEPEEHNRE - BE /10
REIOX » RIFFIMA - ARERBEZESE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group has a policy of granting trade customers with
credit terms of generally 10 days to 90 days. The ageing

WEBRRIBREC D ATIA T - analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that are not
impaired, based on due date, is as follows:
AEE
Group
2014 2013
FHET TFET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
KRB BTN AR E Neither past due nor impaired 564 1,156
FBIEERER DR =E A Past due less than 3 months 915 1,337
BiBERRE=2/NEA 2 H Past due more than 3 months
but less than 6 months 6 -
1,485 2,493

R|BER > HRNBLERRETFIHMTEENL
% - NEEYEBRXBHRRENE SRR
o RBABTRBEENESREREXEBTE
FBER mEFEAKEEERINZZERC
o BERGH - AEREL A FHRBRFBER
RKEMIE AR IRE

IR

1 1 4 RBEERAR-LT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
|

At the end of reporting period, the Group had no significant
balances of trade receivables that were past due but
not impaired as there was no recent history of default in
respect of these trade debtors. Trade receivables that were
neither past due nor impaired related to a large number
of independent customers that had a good track record
of credit with the Group. In general, the Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.
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22. 51& ~ B E B H th FEWER 22. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

REE ¥IN/NC|
Group Company
2014 2013 2014
FHET T FH&T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
H fib jE I BR Other receivables 17,929 25,074 35
HA Deposits 7,605 6,013 =
SEUNERN Prepayments 78,558 76,414 279
104,092 107,501 314

23. MR EBHEFNEZNEFMEE & 23. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FAIR

& VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
AEH
Group
2014 2013
FE T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEARBEFABZSNESHEE : Financial assets at FVTPL:
MTESRTA Derivative financial instruments
—INERERA A — Foreign currency forward contract - 105
— HNiE HARE & 4V — Foreign currency options contracts - 616
- 721
BRARBEAABZNERAE Financial liabilities at FVTPL:
PTEERTA Derivative financial instrument
—INERHIG A — Foreign currency forward contracts 170 -

20145 &3 AmnualReport2014 115
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23. MR EBEFNIEZMNEFMESE & 23. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FAIR

&) VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
SNFEIREAA 4 Sk HRE S s e T R B R R4 T The foreign currency forward or options contracts
FZE P A RBE S ETTEHER L 5 S SEINE - represented the exchange of notional amount denominated

in Renminbi (“RMB”) or US$ at the contract rate on the
specified maturity date.

RI|EHCK - KRENHIEINE R B s HIRE & 48 & The total notional principal amounts of the outstanding
EARSTBINT - foreign currency forward or options contracts at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

REE
Group
2014 2013
FE T FH&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
HEBTITBARKE Sell HK$ for RMB 7,673 6,278
&SI IRETT Sell HK$ for US$ - 62,208

1 1 6 RBEZERKRERAT EGLHOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
|
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24. FEUEE 2 B AR

RIE FE622F H B R A EFI M =115 78(1)IK AT
BEMEAEREANBTHRAEREER(BEST
F2ERNTEFIFE161BIE) T ¢

rEH
Group

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES

Loans to officers of the Group and the Company disclosed
pursuant to Section 78(1) of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622 which requires compliance
with Section 161B of the Companies Ordinance, Cap. 32
are as follows:

FR&R
RNMEREHE
Maximum
amount
outstanding

during
2014 2013 the year
FET TBT FHBT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
EGL J-Mart Limited EGL J-Mart Limited (“EGL J-Mart”)
(TEGL J-Mart]) - 3,111 3,111
Evergloss Tours Company  Evergloss Tours Company Limited
Limited - 51 51
REITHERAR([KET]) Great Port Limited (“Great Port”) 2,503 2,282 2,503
2,503 5,444

ARBATESERXERE - BEEZRE - B
SIRENFES LA LI A EIRE -

FEWRBE N AR AEER  RERREREER

RBEIR - BRARETT
MEMENHERS -

RRXNTHERF

The Executive Directors of the Company, Mr. Yuen Man
Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms.
Lee Po Fun, have equity interests in the above companies.

The amounts due from related companies are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

At the end of the reporting period, the amount due from

Great Port represented rental deposits paid to the related
company for the rented premises.
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25. RERBEEFB/YA RIKP|RITEFK

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

REE RN F]

Group Company

2014 2013 2014

FE T FAT FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

RITFEARMNEFRE Cash at banks and in hand 308,380 297,034 4,010
7E B R Fixed deposits 38,037 55,317 =
346,417 352,351 4,010

B EIRIRITER Less: Pledged bank deposits (22,039) (22,301) —
RERRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 324,378 330,050 4,010

AEENREKBESEEMEEERTBRITE
FFERRZEHF R ENRTFRAMIEZREITT
% F EE BB EHRITF K R2014512 431
B HFFENT01%%E2.8% (2013 : 0.1%=
5.8%) ' RIGFIEEIR A=A~ =1EA -

M2014%12A318 A& BB/ THRITERL
22,039,000/ 75 (2013 : 22,301,000/ 7t ) 1 45
RIT EARRKRASENE TE =5 L AER
BRI JR INE R HE AR

1 1 8 RBEZERKRERAT EGLHOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
|

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents comprise bank
deposits carrying interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates and short-term bank deposits carrying
interests at prevailing market interest rate ranging from
0.1% to 2.8% (2013: 0.1% to 5.8%) per annum as at 31
December 2014, with an original maturity of three months or
less.

As at 31 December 2014, certain deposits of the Group in
banks amounted to approximately HK$22,039,000 (2013:
HK$22,301,000) were pledged to banks as securities for
letters of guarantee issued to certain third parties on behalf
of the Group and for foreign currency arrangements.
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26. E5EMER 26. TRADE PAYABLES
2 ZEMNBENEE RS BE T E M FE R EK A R The credit terms of trade payables vary according to the
KEEMAR @ BEMXIKREZ0K - EIEEESHR terms agreed with different suppliers, which normally range
BNERCAEEZXZAH—)  REEER from 1 day to 30 days. Based on the receipts of services
REEE G EMNBRARBDITHOT : and goods, which normally coincided with the invoice dates,

the ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

AEE

Group
2014 2013
FET FHTT
HK$’000 HK$’000
0 - 90K 0 - 90 days 53,285 47,394
91 - 180K 91 - 180 days 244 87
181 — 365K 181 - 365 days 59 25
B E365K Over 365 days 98 335
53,686 47,841

27, FESIEIE - BIRETS B K FE(TBE 27. ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
OTHER PAYABLES

REH P NN

Group Company

2014 2013 2014

FH&T FET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

JEETE Accrued expenses 8,083 6,472 3,780
BWEFRI® Customer deposits received 114,874 140,071 =
H At fERTRR Other payables 61,413 59,113 1,766
184,370 205,656 5,546

20145 %% AnnualReport2014 119
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28. lEA 28. SHARE CAPITAL
£ gE| &%
Number Amount
T FATT
’000 HK$'000
TEIE Authorised
ZHR0. 18Ty E AR Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
R2013%F1 818 At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013
2013%12HA31H and 1 January 2014
K2014%F1 18 - -
FE A S e 2 #1860V ATE AR AR Initial authorised share capital upon
incorporation 3,800 380
12014511 A13HAEE Increase in authorised share capital
PRZIE hn on 13 November 2014 996,200 99,620
2014512831 H At 31 December 2014 1,000,000 100,000
£ |
Number Amount
T FHAIT
‘000 HK$’000
BT Issued
5180, 178 8 Z B R Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
20131 A1H » 2013F12A31 8 & At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and
20141 A18 (K3t (@) 1 January 2014 (note (a)) sheyls 3,315
SESEHES Avrising from Group Reorganisation (3,315) (3,315)
SEEARERETRG First issue of shares upon Group
Reorganisation 1 -
SEBHEEE ZRETRGD Second issue of shares upon Group
(K17Eb)) Reorganisation (note (b)) 9 1
BARCR TR (M et () Issue of shares upon capitalisation (note (c)) 399,990 39,999
REIRBERBEITRG (F770) Issue of shares upon global offering (note (d)) 100,000 10,000
FRRE AL B R A TAR D (AT it(e)) Issue of shares upon over-allotment (note (e)) 2,450 245
12014512831 H At 31 December 2014 502,450 50,245

1 20 RBEZERKRERAT EGLHOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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28. A (&)

Mt -

(@)

20141 A1 B K IRA R T E A Al M AR AN 42 58 -

R2014F11 138 + KA RILAR(E61,198,16375
TRREEERERREEENZIRA - AR
A A AR B IR il 3% R #5179,0008% A\ BRFIVES 2
B mAR o

BB R2014F11AIBE BBME@MAF R
EEEEEBARARMNEERERERN
39,999,000/ TR EAR  WIAZE L FHILHEE
%4 23899,990,000/% F3@AR ([ EAL 81T ]) °

BEE2HREE RERI139E TN BRET
100,000,0000% £ A% 0.1 7T ) 5@ A% - 481t
B (kR A0 2175 S AT) 494139,000,0007/ 7T

B R20145F12 B19H 58 5k /) 17 {F B 58 Ao A% #2
Ms ' ARARIRERIIGE THEBRETAH
2,450,000/% & A% ©

B
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

The share capital as at 1 January 2014 represented the
aggregate amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries.

On 13 November 2014, the Company acquired the entire
share capital of EGL Management from Evergloss in
consideration of HK$61,198,163, which the Company allotted
and issued 9,000 ordinary shares, credited as fully paid, to
Evergloss.

Pursuant to written resolutions passed on 13 November
2014, the directors authorised to capitalise approximately
HK$39,999,000 from the amount standing to the credit of
the share premium account of the Company and applied
such amount to pay up in full at par of 399,990,000 ordinary
shares (“Capitalisation Issue”).

Pursuant to the global offering, 100,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each were issued at a price of HK$1.39 per share
for a total consideration (before share issuance expenses) of
approximately HK$139,000,000.

In connection with the exercise of the over-allotment option
completed on 19 December 2014, the Company issued a
total of 2,450,000 ordinary shares at a price of HK$1.39 per
share.

20145 F 3K Annual Report 2014
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29. #E& 29. RESERVES

REE
AEERFRBEDH 2 HFBENUBRR 2EAER
EHRA - SN HEREEREMDT

Bt s (8
AEBE R G EREAR B ETRAASKIAR
BARBEBITROEEZRD °

BHEE
AEBEHRERENHB AR ZEKARERE
B EARNERTRAEEBE I HAEHE -

SHE 1l
AL Y HMNE B R R E SRR R P e B 1 R
PRV ERR ©

ETE#E
REBHETERBBIEERMEMK IO —KERE
BRITBAR - FRIERM - BEBCRPIEETA
SFRINEITTIR - AB L & D 25%F & s FIERE
EfEE  EEFBEIZARRARS0%H)KF o
R20144 K20135 128318 » A E R EZDK
BRRIRAHS50%  JAE BB S

1 22 RBEERAR-LT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
|

Group

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves are as
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
of the financial statements. The natures and purposes of
reserves within equity are as follows:

Share premium

The share premium account of the Group represents the
excess of the proceeds received over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
pbetween the investment costs in subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the issued share capital of the Group’s
subsidiaries.

Foreign exchange reserve

Foreign exchange reserve of the Group represents the
exchange differences on translation of the financial
statements of the EGL Macau.

Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve of the Group represents EGL Macau, a
subsidiary, incorporated in Macau and limited by quotas,
which is required under the Macau Commercial Code Article
377 to set aside a minimum of 25% of profit after taxation
to the legal reserve until the balance of the reserve reaches
a level equivalent to 50% of the company’s capital. At
31 December 2014 and 2013, the legal reserve reached
50% of the subsidiary’s share capital. Legal reserve is not
distributable.
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29. & =) 29. RESERVES (Continued)

B
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RAH
Company
IR 12 R E Z5tEE #st
Share  Accumulated
premium losses Total
FAT FABT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R2013F1 A1 » At 1 January 2013,
2013412 A31H 31 December 2013 and
N201451 A1 H 1 January 2014 - = -
SESEAREITRG Issue of shares upon Group
(H1&#28(b)) Reorganisation (note 28(b)) 61,197 = 61,197
BB EBEITRR D (K13£28(c))  Issue of shares upon
capitalisation (note 28(c)) (89,999) = (39,999)
EREERBITRG Issue of shares upon
(H7a£28(d)) global offering (note 28(d)) 129,000 = 129,000
FAFEAD R RITAR D Issue of shares upon
(H1i#28()) over-allotment (note 28(e)) 3,161 = 3,161
B EETRAY Share issuance expenses (8,024) - (8,024)
AEF IR Loss for the year - (21,258) (21,258)
M2014F12H31H At 31 December 2014 145,335 (21,258) 124,077
20145 %3 AnnualReport2014 123
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30.

Bz EtE

ANA FIER AR BB R AE ST 2R 201411 A 13 B &R%
AL o

BT EI T~

B2014511 A13HE - BREFTENBE R A10
F o RIBEBRETS ES2EPBREEEAE
BR2HEEWMEEDRERARRTROOEL
RBENMERUTRSE (AR ARORRHE
Wi 24 B HATERE P B KR TR AU T (E
KR ARIROD A BT L EBRE 2 Z4 B HaT
FEZEEAEHIMARKATHFHRTE
RO EE - REBRE ZHOATRELN B
%28 B NEEM -

B A ERERERES SR A (B 52014
F11 18R BEH10F ) 2 IR IBH AI EITE - B
REBRENTEAHNBESETIAELELD
B AR AR BET - MR BT B IR
B ET10F 2 B - W R IR PR IE 2 IEUR
R o

KA B st 1R MEMBRF IR T EMA W ARTT
158 &0 s s AR 528 [R) A 2 ) 2R B AR 4 ) L A s SO R
AHEIFTEEREMBREN S TRITHNRRRE S
KT CHEBERERBERENEBETEKRRER
NRIBEETRIIA10% (ENFTABREERE %
1THYEMIAZ (D) - B150,000,0004% °

1 24 RBEERARALT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
adopted by the Company was approved by the shareholders
on 13 November 2014,

A summary of the Share Option Scheme is set out below:

The Share Option Scheme became effective for a period of
10 years commencing on 13 November 2014. Under the
Share Option Scheme, the directors shall, in its absolute
discretion select, make an offer to any eligible participants to
subscribe for shares of the Company at a subscription price
being not less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of the offer of grant; or (ii)
the average closing prices of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of the
offer of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the share. The
offer of a grant of options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the offer.

The options granted shall be exercisable in whole or in
part in the effective option period (i.e. 10 years from the
commencing date on 13 November 2014). The exercise
period of the options granted is determined and notified by
the directors to the grantee thereof at the time of making an
offer provided that such period shall not exceed the period
of 10 years from the date of the grant of the option is made,
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted at any time under
this Share Option Scheme together with options which may
be granted under any other share option schemes for the
time being of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue immediately
following the completion of the global offering and the
Capitalisation Issue (but taking no account of any shares
issued upon over-allotment), being 50 million shares.
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30. BRzHERE (@)

RNEE I EARR B R ST & A REARRE - R
2014124318 « WEEMBIEEREEIR D
B M ARTTEREARAE - BAREY B THRAB AT A
WER IR B TE R A ® IR ERIHER) o

31. BIKFHE 31.

AEERERERBEBARGMEAES([AES ) FTE
EIRHHEH B20005F12 81 B £ 2@ HI A
BertEEH 2B -2 ABZETARE L
BEEEE  REAGEREBSHN - BIERES
TE - EFEHEESRESHEBBAZ5%E B8R
Zar B R (R &= S AHBABKTE) o
A KA LR 5 8201246 H1H £20,000
7 TT IR | £25,000%8 7T - & B2014566A1H M
25,000/ JLiE /=5 230,000/ 7T © @ fE & aT & A9

RAEEBES

RAFE AEBIYNEBEZHRLEDN A
5,070,000 7 (2013 : 4,955,000 7T ) ° N4 [E
RAEERWME KA B A MR -

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No share options were granted under the Share Option
Scheme during the year. At 31 December 2014, there were
no outstanding options granted under the Share Option
Scheme. Share options do not confer rights to the holders
to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

Under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
regulated by the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Schemes Authority in Hong Kong, with effect from 1
December 2000, the Group participates in a MPF scheme
operated by an approved trustee in Hong Kong and
makes contributions for its eligible employees. Under the
MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income. The cap of monthly relevant income is
increased from HK$20,000 to HK$25,000 from 1 June
2012 and from HK$25,000 to HK$30,000 from 1 June
2014, respectively. Contributions to the MPF scheme vest
immediately.

During the year, the aggregate amounts of employer’s
contributions made by the Group are approximately
HK$5,070,000 (2013: HK$4,955,000). No forfeited
contribution is available for offset against existing
contributions during the year.

20145 F 3K Annual Report 2014
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2. AEFXRS

BARGEMBREEMIT D BRI S R &S In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
S BRBIBITET IR BT ¢

(@ RAFEEXNEEIKS

126

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

elsewhere in this consolidated financial statements, the
following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(@) Significant related party transactions during the

year
rEH
Group
2013
Hfa FET
Notes HK$’000
YN TFEEAR S Rental paid to a related company
—KE1T — Great Port (i) 13,883
IR TREEARZHE Interest paid to a related company
— KRBT — Great Port (ii) 1,324
REFEARWER . EEE Management fee received from
a related company
— EGL J-Mart - EGL J-Mart (iii) 84
REFXNBLATIES Provision of travel related products
FTEHIE A R 2 BRTT and services to a company
HE R E o K AR controlled by a subsidiary’s
director
— Ever Win Company — Ever Win Company Limited
Limited ([ Ever Win ) (“Ever Win”) (i) 121
mIEE LN R EEY Acquisition of property, plant and
B &% equipment from a related company
— KRBT — Great Port (iii) =

RBFEZERAMRAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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2. AERXG#)
(@) RAFEFEAFELS(E)
HtaE -
0] S FEERRZESEANRERKLE

BIEFREAREHEBEQARRIZEE
e (R T

(i) XNFEERARDZANETDERHEENKR
(B EFRAETT ©

(i) ZERZTIEREF T ZIGTGETT ©

RARITESRXELE - BEREE -
2R EEMFTES IR ERERRZR
o BEER LA (2014512831 BEHER
b R IRT THEE = )5 B Ever Winf&AE o

(b) TEZEEAEZFH
AEE EERHEMEIEZERASKE ZM

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

@

(b)

Significant related party transactions during the
year (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Rental expenses paid to a related company were
conducted in the normal course of business and in
accordance with terms of the lease agreements entered
into between the Group and the related company.

(i) Interest paid to a related company was conducted
on the basis of agreed interest rate and terms of
repayment.

(i)  The transactions were conducted on the basis of
mutually agreed terms.

The Executive Directors of the Company, Mr. Yuen
Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing
Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun, have equity interests in
the related companies. Mr. Lui Lok Pun, resigned as
director of EGL Tours and i-Evertravel on 31 December
2014, has equity interest in Ever Win.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of

ST key management during the year were as follows:

rEE
Group

2014 2013

FBT FABT

HK$’000 HK$’000

REE BB Short-term employee benefits 30,443 37,125

BER R 1R A Post-employment benefits 444 427

30,887 37,5652

2014% % AnnualReport2014 127
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33. EARAREEHERIE 33. CAPITAL AND OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS

(a) BEIEE (a) Capital commitments
EANEEEEME  WMENREZ BN Capital commitments in respect of purchase of
N property, plant and equipment for the Group are as
follows:

REE

Group
2014 2013
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRI AE R Contracted but not provided for 306 -
R20144F 2013F 12 A31H * A QA7 £& As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company had

BEREARESE - no significant capital commitments.

1 28 RBEZERKRERAT EGLHOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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33. EAREEHERIE®)

b) EEHMEFE

AEERBELEREMAES TYE - HA
RipRREE - HEZ VL HBBIECF

(2013 : 1E6%F) ©

AREBA A2 EHER MR RKEHR

ENFERIHEMT

33. CAPITAL AND OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS (Continued)

B

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases a number of premises, office
equipment and tour buses under operating leases. The

leases run for an initial period of one to six years (2013:

one to six years).

The Group had total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

follows:

REE
Group
2014 2013
T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
HEWE Rented premises
1ER Within one year 24,560 18,025
FOEEFSF(EHEME) In the second to fifth year, inclusive 39,918 16,471
64,478 34,496
NS Office equipment
1ER Within one year 2,824 2,594
FOFEEFESF(EHEME) In the second to fifth year, inclusive 9,871 10,531
12,695 13,125
S ks Rented tours buses
15K Within one year 24,008 9,365
FOFEEFESF(FHEME) In the second to fifth year, inclusive 44,700 8,829
68,708 18,194
145,881 65,815

M2014F12 8318 » AR &I £ E 1 At
FAA S AF A A (T &8 F SR IE -
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As at 31 December 2014, the Company had no
operating lease commitments as lessor or lessee.
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34. EEBERE 34. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

REFB ESEEBERLE The Group’s capital management objectives include:
(a) MWRAEBFELL 7L  NEERIRR (@ To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
B35 [0 3R N A E b 5| 25 A8 RE 77 s SR 2 going concern, so that it continues to provide returns
for equity holders and benefits for other stakeholders;

b) ZBEAEBHNEEREER: K& (b)  To support the Group’s stability and growth; and
() AmEAEEREKREEERNERES - (¢) To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the

Group’s risk management capability.

AREEBRBEAEEBRARESERKRENNZ - IR The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
ERFEzAEMNE - BitEERERE BASH capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and

LREREHE BERETHRNLEEEANE
B UWRRRENEDEBEMBIREE - AEE
ERIARBEFMERRBBE -

AEEEEEAGERE  RELERAMBHEEE
ZRBRBEEETHE RERIFARELRE
B AREARHBXNTRRZEESEH - MK
RREEN  BTHR - MEEHHREEEEN
R

1 30 RRPEZERBMR AT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
|

shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows, capital expenditures and strategic investment
opportunities. The Group does not currently adopt any
formal dividend policy.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to equity holders, return
capital to equity holders, issue new shares, raise new debts
or sell assets to reduce debt.
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A5 B B i 3R

$EIEEI BEBBRETHEMNE EF5 RY
T RINERR -  EFSTEHE @A RHIE
Eﬁai¥$ﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁnu2m%ﬂ ACRZVIEISTIN
KEXBHLEAEY) FERRIABESRA
B o —RiME - AEEBERE IRIRER T RHES

(@) FIE =z
%UTH f/\/ﬂ}&_lﬁ QI/E:ZQJLC{E'TEEZEE
EREERTIGH RS EEKE) o

ZRER B T b N R B B = 2 N R IT IR IR F
BHBEEMEFEN R - RI|EHK - A&
B AL B A o ARE AR EREMRT

BHEIMEEER M XER o AREHK
REENEXEARHERR EFARAEE
R Z R R E R TK o

b) 1ZEER
EERRE-HERIAZRIUFERRE
B T EAEITH B A WA S BIEK 5
Rz ER -

AEBHEGZEERRIERBNAEESE
BETAERFETEE  ERXBEHR
FER 2 & BB B 2 ik T & %R (20 BfY £S5 (f)
i) o

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposures to interest rate, credit, liquidity and foreign
currency risks arise in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The board of directors meets periodically to
analyse and formulate measures to manage the Group’s
exposure to market risk (including principal changes in
interest rates and foreign currency rates), credit risk and
liquidity risk. Generally, the Group employs a conservative
strategy regarding its risk management.

(@) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk mainly arises
from bank deposits which earn interests at floating
or fixed rates. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group did not have any interest bearing borrowings.
The Group has not used any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The Group
has not formulated a policy to manage the interest
rate risk. The directors considered that the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk is not significant.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of which and cause a
financial loss to the Group.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises from
granting credits to customers in the ordinary course of
its operations and is limited to the carrying amount of
financial assets recognised at the end of the reporting
period, as summarised in note 35(f).
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35. AR ETE &)

ZEER (&)
AEERGERE S MEMEREEAERE
REERBRSES o 285 BK e E 0 {E R
RGHUFREMFEARUSR 2R ZHFE
SIMZEMEREERR - AEBZRITHE
HERNER - AARRFEERIT - AK
B REEREMEAEERR

®)

SAEKBERARRASIBZEERR - ER
RXHHFERRERYT - AEEEEHRR
SHFEMENSIBRZEERRAR - it
ARATERZFERARWBRIEEXE

18

BZEFRRPRERRL -

REE AR
nBEEREBSRAEEELETEERR
THREMEREELBLCRABMERIE
EMELRERE -

(c)

AEBEERNRERERERIERE 2 —EX
FRELBEEEY  RAKEZERHE
ERFERESRENBDITE

AEEZHRRERERRBREH MRS
BFRBEEFR - AKBZRPESTE
BREEFAREERSNE LSBT
HEBRT AREEBRABELZESIF
RRBEECERHR -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

(©)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s trade and other receivables are actively
monitored to avoid significant concentrations of credit
risk. The Group is not exposed to any significant
credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any
group of counterparties having similar characteristics.
The Group’s bank balances are deposited with major
banks in Hong Kong, Japan and Macau. The Group
has no other significant exposure to credit risk.

With respect to credit risk arising from the amounts
due from related companies, the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from repayment default of
counterparties is limited as the counterparties have
good credit history and the Company does not expect
any significant loss of uncollected advances from these
entities.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
throughout the year and are considered to be effective.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
other financial assets.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements in the short and long
terms. The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent
on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from
operations to meet its debt obligations. The Group
relies on internally generated funding as a significant
source of liquidity.
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B EREIR &) 35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
) REEERE) (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
RI{EHIR » REFBENS LY KRRERZ The maturity profile of the financial liabilities as at the
SREENNHMBERAT end of the reporting period, based on the contracted

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

REEE
Group
RHRUS
RS BEEHE ) PR=ER ZZE+=fiA
Total
contractual
Carrying  undiscounted Less than Three to
amount cash flow On demand  three months twelve months
THT THT THL THL THTL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2014
FiTEeraE Non-derivatives:
BHEMNE Trade payables 53,686 53,686 6,883 46,612 191
JERT A R E MR R Accruals and other payables 69,496 69,496 10,950 12,690 45,856
123,182 123,182 17,833 59,302 46,047
CEBESRERETE .  Derivatives settled net:
MNERHEH Foreign currency forward contracts 170 170 - 170 -
123,352 123,352 17,833 59,472 46,047
2013
FTEeRaE Non-derivatives:
BHERER Trade payables 47 841 47 841 2,671 45,057 113
FERT AR A A e fTER Accruals and other payables 65,585 65,585 1,052 23,147 40,486
113,426 113,426 4,623 68,204 40,599

20145 %3 AnnualReport2014 133
.



iR e B RS AR MY A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZ=2014%12 A31H IEFZ For the year ended 31 December 2014

35. AR ETE &)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

() REETERE) (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
¥ N/NE|
Company
BHRHR
RELE  ARLNE BIE YR=BA Z=Z+=fiA
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Less than Three to
amount cash flow On demand three months twelve months
THL T T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2014
FITESRIEE Non-derivatives:
e FER AR Accruals and other payables 5,546 5,546 5,546 - -
EfHBARER Amount due to a subsidiary 382 382 382 - =
5,928 5,928 5,928 - -
(@) SMNEJE R (d) Foreign currency risk

SNERBRIE-REMIAZ A AABENKAR
ReneR@ENRESBL KB EE ZE

LA
o0
2

o

AEEEERSHERRR - 2FRBRKE
NIEAEBERNINEEE 2 BB IRERTT
B & ERITRBRBEEZWA - BARR
B JE{E T8 B A 2 AR 7S e EL b hR 7 T AR B AR 75
LA o NEE - NEEK45.9% (2013 -
42.9%) 7 KR K 498.1% (2013 : 10.1%) 2
EEBLIEAEBEENIIEEN 2 E¥ET
=

1 34 RBEZERKRERAT EGLHOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the income from provision of
package tours, other travel related services as well as
costs of services consumed in hotel accommodation
and other travel related services in currencies
other than the Group entities’ functional currency.
Approximately 45.9% (2013: 42.9%) of costs and
approximately 8.1% (2013: 10.1%) of the Group’s
turnover are denominated in the currencies other than
the Group entities’ functional currency for the year.
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35. A EMEE &)

(@) SMEE SR (&)
AEBERESEEREREEER - ZFERK
BREEMBBEZEHRAFAEEERNT
REBZEEHE - AERERREHRIAI
BHECEREERABZREASEOT

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group also has translation currency exposures.
Such exposures arise from the balances of assets and
liabilities in currencies other than the Group’s functional
currency. The carrying amounts of the foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

AEE
Group
2014 2013
FET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets
H Japanese Yen (“JPY") 47,112 40,011
AR RMB 37,660 32,712
84,772 72,723
=N Liabilities
== JPY 25,035 23,450
AR RMB 170 -
25,205 23,450

EIE E B B T ) B 5 SN [ R BT ORI HME R
b WHEEEBER TRIIMNEEHARGES
7 o

BORFITEBETAREE EFERRAE
B RPITTZINE R REK ©

The management monitors foreign currency exposure
by closely monitoring the movements of foreign
currency rates and will enter into a foreign currency
forward or options contract, when and where
appropriate.

The directors consider that the Group’s exposure
on foreign currency risk in respect of MOP is not
significant because MOP is effectively pegged with
HKS$.

20145 F 3K Annual Report 2014
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35. AR ETE &)

(@) SMEE SR (&)
TREJARASERRERREAZEAR
RZINEERZ QIRRI LR MAKE 2 F
BENFARE B 2 KETEE) - Z5%E X
ARAEREEABERABINERR - K
REEENBHEINEE R BT 2 R -

WA TR AT Th R R R B A B
SEEEZ BEEHLEDRE « WHEE
ERRHTE -

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change
in the Group’s profit for the year and retained earnings
in response to reasonably possible changes in the
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of reporting period.
The 5% rate is used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s best assessment of the
possible changes in foreign exchange rates.

The following sensitivity analysis has been determined
based on the assumed percentage changes in foreign
exchange rates taking place at the beginning of the
reporting year and held constant throughout the year.

REE
Group
2014 2013
FEEF F s A
RRBEFEFH (FFE) RRBEF LA (TE)

Increase/(decrease) in Increase/(decrease) in
profit for the year and

retained earnings

profit for the year and
retained earnings

136

H AR =| AR
JPY RMB JIRY RMB
FET FET T FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
[E =B ! Changes in exchange rate:

PE TR INEE EF5% HK$ appreciates by 5%
against foreign currencies (922) (1,565) (691) (1,366)

ST INE T B55% HK$ depreciates by 5%
against foreign currencies 922 1,565 691 1,366

RBEERARALT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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35. A EBREIE (%)

(e)

LAEE

RN RS - 35T e RIZ D
REBEAEZERIAZEREREAAE
ERE -

ATERBEINZRABESREAD ZAAE
EARZERTADH :

EF&—: MHEREEXRBEEIERMES LR

Eh=: BRELAPREIEZFEEX
BEABERIAMER(NER)
SEE(WITEBBER)BAR
B R

EFHh=: RFEESRBERENTEREZ
MEEE 2B ARBR(T AR
BABIR) °
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(e

Fair value

Due to the short term nature, the carrying value of
financial instruments not measured at fair value as
detailed in note 35(f) approximates fair value.

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments carried at fair value by level of the Fair
Value Hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liabilities, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are
not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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35. AR ETE &)

(e) A EEE)

rEE
Group

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(e) Fair value (Continued)

£ — Z£h= Z£8= =

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

FHATT FHIT FATT FHTT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

12014512831 H
BARBETAERE

As at 31 December 2014
Financial liabilities at FVTPL:

ZEBBIE
MESRTA Derivative financial instrument
—INEIRHAG &Y — Foreign currency forward
contracts = 170 = 170
£4— o £48= =
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

TAET TAT TR T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000

A2013F12831H
BAREBER ABR

As at 31 December 2013
Financial assets at FVTPL:

ZEREE
PTEEMmT A Derivative financial instruments
— N R EA G 4Y — Foreign currency forward
contract = 105 = 105
—INEERRE S 4V — Foreign currency options
contracts = 616 = 616
HNERFASCERRE A N 2 AR BEDISEERN The fair value of foreign currency forward or options
FHEENEMITANRITARBE(TEE contracts is with reference to the current fair value
AE) - of other instruments that are substantially the same
(subject to appropriate adjustments).
RAFE  BEeREEXCRBETARE There was no transfer of financial asset or financial

BER—  —2RHEB -

liability between Level 1 and Level 2 of the Fair Value
Hierarchy during the year.

1 38 RRPEZERBMR AT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

MEEREE®)
 KEFE7zEHEERREHRE (®

RERBIRRART 2N ZRES RS RIAT

TREENTRABER

category

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated

statement of financial position related to the following

categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

AREE
Group
2014 2013
T FETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EREE Financial assets
B B IE Loans and receivables (including cash
(BIERESRRSEEY): and cash equivalents):
B 5 IR Trade receivables 1,485 2,493
51 N E At e W BR Deposits and other receivables 25,534 31,087
JEUN #8:E A A BR K Amounts due from related companies 2,503 5,444
EIRIRITFK Pledged bank deposits 22,039 22,301
REMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 324,378 330,050
375,939 391,375
BAREBEFAER I SREE Financial assets at FVTPL:
HNERHAS 49 Foreign currency forward contract - 105
SNEE B S 49 Foreign currency options contracts - 616
375,939 392,096
o=k Financial liabilities
REERATTEZ MBS Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
=) A Trade payables 53,686 47,841
FERTFRIE & E A FE S BR Accruals and other payables 69,496 65,585
123,182 113,426
BRAnBEAABRZEREE Financial liabilities at FVTPL:
SNE R HAG 49 Foreign currency forward contracts 170 =
123,352 113,426
20145 %3 AnnualReport2014 139
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35. MBEKREER®)

)
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L& 7 T REERE EWME

(%)

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

()  Summary of financial assets and liabilities by
category (Continued)

/N
Company

SRIERE Financial assets

B & EWRIE Loans and receivables
(BERESRBSEEY): (including cash and cash equivalents):
H o FEU AR Other receivables
NS E N Amount due from a subsidiary
ReRBFASEEY Cash and cash equivalents

SRIEE Financial liabilities

RHEN AT ECoRAE Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
FERTFRIE M E A RS BR Accruals and other payables
FEAT BT B A RIBR 5K Amount due to a subsidiary
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